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.. . . , .  - .  

Enclosed f o r  filing on behalf of Dana Utility Corporation 
(Dana) a r e  the following: 

( 1 )  The o r i g i n a l  and twelve copies of Dana's Application for 
Original C e r t i f i c a t e  f u r  a proposed water and wastewater s y s t e m  
in Bay County, tDgether with exhibits. Pursuant to t h e  
Commission's r u l e s ,  on ly  one copy of t h e  service t e r r i t o r y  map is 
included. 

( 2 )  A check f o r  $ 3 , 0 0 0  in payment of the  applicable filing 
fees ($1 ,500  each) f o r  the water and wastewater applications. 

(3) The o r i g i n a l  and f i f t e e n  cop ie s  of  Dana's Petition f o r  
Temporary Variance From or Temporary Waiver of  a number of  
Commission r u l e s  to be filed i n  the application docket .  

If you have any questions regarding these filings, please 
call. 

RDM/mee 
Richard D. Melson 



To : 

APPLICATION FOR ORIGINAL CER 
FOR A PROPOSED OR EXISTING 

(Pursuant t o  Section 367.045,  Florida Statutes) 

Director, Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

The undersigned hereby makes application for original 
certificate(5) to ope:rate a water X and- wastewater -X 
utility in Bav County, Florida, and submits 
the following information:’ 1 

PART I APPLICANT IHFORMATION 

The full name (as it appears on the  certificate), 
address and telephone number of the applicant: 

pana Utility Corporation 
Name of utility 

850 1271-0120 ( 8 5 0  1271-1412 
Phone No,, Fax No. 

13100 S t a t e  Road 77 
Office street address 6t Mailing address 

Southport, Florida 32409 
city State Zip Code 

lakemerialhanacom. corn 
Internet address if applicable 

The name, address and telephone number of the  person 
to contact concerning t h i s  application: 

Charles E. Fancher, Jr. I 305 1 461-5550 
Name Phone No. 

2 8 4 4  Chucunantah Road Sui te  F 
Street address 

Miami, Florida 33133 
city State z i p  code 

This is an Application for Original Certificates only. 
Charges, and the financial, engineering and operating 
submitted at a later da1.e as a separate application. 

1 

The Application for Initial Rates and 
information supporting same will be 

. . . . __ / 



PART I1 

Indicate the organizational 
applicant: (circle one) - 

@&ratio12 Partnership 

character of the 

Sole Proprietorship 

Other 
(Specify)  

If the  applicant is a corporation, indicate whether it 
has made an election under Internal Revenue Code 
Section 13162 to be an S Corporation: 

Yes - NO X 

If the  applicant 
and addresses 
partners, 'or any 
interest .in the  

is a corporation, list names, titles 
of corporate officers, directors, 
other person(s) or entities owning an 
applicant's business organization. 

( U s e  additional sheet if necessary). 

M a r t i n  J. IGoldstein Director,  President and Secretary 

Avram Simon Director 

Nicholas S. Lamont Director and Treasurer 

L e s  W. Burke  Assistant Secretary 

Address for a l l  the above: 

13100 State Road 77 

Southport ,  Florida 3 2 4 0 9  

If the applicant is not a corporation, list names and 
addresses of a l l  persons or entities owning an 
interest i .n the  organization. (Use additional sheet 
if necessary. } 

N / A  

NEED FOR SERVICE 

A )  Exhibit A - A statement regarding the need for 
service in the proposed territory, such as anticipated 
(or actual-) development in the area. Identify any 

2 



PART 1 x 1  

other u t i1 , i t i e s  w i t h i n  the area proposed to be served 
which could potentially provide such service in the 
area and the s teps  the applicant took to ascertain 
whether such other service is available. 

B) Exhibit B - A statement that to the best of the 
applicant !s knowledge , the provision of service will 
be consistent with the water and wastewater sections 
of the local  comprehensive plan,  as approved by the 
Department of Community Affairs at the  time the  
application is filed. If the provision of service is 
inconsistent w i t h  such plan, provide a statement 
demonstrating why granting the  certificate would be in 
the  public interest. 

BYBTEM INFORMATION 

WATER 

(1) Exhibit C - A statement describing the 
proposed type(s) of water service to be provided 
( i . e . ,  potable, non-potable or both) .  

( 2 )  Exhibit D - The number of equivalent 
residential connections (ERCs) proposed to be 

development will be in phases, separate this 
information by phase. I n  addition, if the utility 
is i n  operat ion,  provide the cur ren t  number of 
ERCs by meter s i z e  and customer c las s .  

( 3 )  Description of the  types of customers ant i c ipated  
(i.e., single family, mobile homes, clubhouse, 
commercial, e t c . ) :  

served, by meter s i z e  and customer class. If 

Sinsle f amilv residential, public school, 
commercial shopsins center, hotel and country club 

( 4 )  In the  case of an existing utility, provide t h e  
permit  number and the date of approval of 
facilities by the Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) or the agency designated by DEP 
to issue permits: 

(5) Indicate  the design capacity of the  treatment 
plant in terms of equivalent residential 
connec t ions  ( E R C s )  and gallons per day (gpd) ,  If 
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development will be i n  phases, 
.information by phase. 

separate t h i s  

Phase 1 - N o t  finalized (ERCs) 
Final - approx. 900 ( E R C s )  

150,000 (gpd) 
300,000 (gpd) 

UDdated information will be supplied w i t h  the 
aDDlication for aDBroval of i n i t i a l  rates and 
charms.  

(6) Indicate the type of treatment: 

Groundwater from the  Floridan formation with 
additional disinfection throush chlorination. 

(7) Indicate the design capacity of the transmission 
and di , s tr ibut ion lines in terms of ERCs and gpd. 
If development will be in phases, separate t h i s  
information by phase. 

,See Footnote 1, Paffe 1 

( 8 )  Provide the date the applicant began or plans to 
begin serving customers: March 1, 2 0 0 0  

( 9 )  Exhibit E - Evidence, in the form of a 
warranty deed, that the utility owns the land 
where the  water facilities are or will be located. 
If the  utility does not own the land, a copy of 
the aqreement which provides for the long term 
continuous use of the land, such as a 99-year 
lease. The Commission may consider a written 
easement or other cost-effective alternative. 

The applicant may submit a contract f o r  the  
purchase and sale of land w i t h  an unexecuted copy 
of the! warranty deed provided the  applicant files 
an executed and recorded copy of the deed, or 
executed copy of the lease, within thirty days 
after the order granting the  certificate. 

WASTEWATER 

(1) Exhibit F - The number of equivalent 
residential connections ( E R C s )  proposed to be 

development will be in phases, separate this 
served, by meter s i z e  and customer class. If 

4 
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.information by phase. In addition, if the utility 
is in operation, provide the current number of 
ERCs by meter s i z e  and customer class. 

( 2 )  Description of the types of customers anticipated 
( i . e . ,  single family, mobile homes, clubhouse, 
commercial, etc.): 

Sinsle family residential, Dublic school, 
commercial shorJpinq center, hote l  and country club 

( 3 )  In t h e  case of an existing utility, provide the  
permit number and the  date of approval of 
facilities by the Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) or the agency designated by DEP 
to issue permits: 

( 4 )  Indicate separately the design capacity of the 
treatment plant  and effluent disposal  system in 
terms of equivalent residential connections (ERCs) 
and gallons per day (gpd). If development will be 
in phases, separate t h i s  information by phase. 

Treatment Plant: 

Phase 1-Not finalized ( E R C s )  9 8 , 0 0 0  (gpd) 
Final - approx. 900 ( E R C s )  300,000 (9Pd) 

Effluent Disposal: 

Phase 1-Not finalized (ERCs) 98,000 ( gPd 1 
Final - asrrrox, 900 (ERCs) 300,000 (gpd) 

Updated information will be sumlied with the  
application for appro Val of initial rates and 
charaes. 

(5) Indicate the  method of treatment and disposal  
(percolation pond, spray f i e l d ,  e t c . )  : 

The nroPosed x>lant will have secondarv treatment 
throush a sinsle stase nitrification/ 

activated sludae srocess, deni tx i f  ication 
secondary sedimentation and disinfection v ia  
contact with chlorine solution. All effluent will 
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PART IV 

A) 

be disposed of v i a  four rapid infiltration basins 
IRIBsl. Residuals treatment includes aerobic 
d iuest ion and land application. The facility will 
be a Type 111, reliability C l a s s  I11 domestic 
w a s t e w , a t e r  treatment facility. 

( 6 )  Exhibit G - If the applicant does not 
propose to use reuse as a means of effluent 
disposal, provide a statement that describes, with 
particularity, the reasons f o r  not using reuse. 

(7) Indicate the  design capacity of the  collection 
lines in terms of EBCs and gpd. If development 
will be in phases, separate this information by 
phase. 

, S e e  Footnote 1, Pase 1 

( 8 )  Provide the  date t h e  applicant began or plans  to 
begin serving customers: March 1, 2000  

( 9 )  Exhibit E - Evidence, in the form of a 
warranty deed, that the utility owns the land 
where the  utility treatment facilities are or will 
be located.  If the utility does not  own the land, 
a copy of the agreement which provides f o r  the 
long t - e r m  continuous use of t h e  land, such as a 
99-year lease. T h e  Commission may consider a 
w r i t t e n  easement or other  cost-effective 
alternative. The applicant may submit a contract 
f o r  the purchase and sale of land w i t h  an 
unexecuted copy of t h e  warranty deed, provided the 
applicant files an executed and recorded copy of 
the deed, or executed copy of the  lease, within 
t h i r t y  days after the order granting the 
certificate. 

BTNANCIAL .AND TECHNICAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit I H - A statement regarding the 
financial and technical ability of the applicant to 
provide reasonably sufficient and efficient service. 

Exhibit  I - A detailed financial statement 
(balance sheet and income statement), certified if 
available, of the  financial condition of the 
applicant, showing a l l  assets and liabilities of every 
kind and character. The income statement shall be for 
the  preceding calendar or fiscal year. If an 
applicant has not operated for a full year, then the 
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income s tatement  shall be for the lesser period, T h e  
financial statement s h a l l  be prepared in accordance 
w i t h  Rule 25-30.115, Florida Administrative Code. If 
available, a statement of the  source and application 
of funds shal l  a l so  be provided. 

Exhibit - J - A list of all entities, 
including affiliates, upon which the  applicant is 
relying tal  provide funding to the utility , and an 
explanation of the manner and amount of such funding, 
which shall include their financial statements and any 
financial agreements with the  utility. This 
requiremen-t shall not  apply to any person or e n t i t y  
holding leiss than 10 percent ownership interest in the 
utility. 

Exhibit =le Footnote 1, Pase 1- A schedule showing the 
projected cost of the  proposed system (or actual cost 
of the existing system) by uniform system of accounts 
(USOA) account numbers pursuant to Rule 25-30.115, 
F . A . C .  In addition, provide the capacity of each 
component of the  system i n  E R C s  and gallons per day. 
If the utility will be built in phases, this schedule 
shall apply to the  design capacity of the first phase 
only .  Provide a separate exhibit f o r  the  water and 
sewer systems. 

Exhibit &e Footnote 1, Pacre 1-A schedule showing t h e  
projected operating expenses of the proposed system by 
USOA account numbers when 8 0  percent of the designed 
capacity of the system is being utilized. If the 
utility will be built i n  phases, this schedule shall 
apply to the  design capacity of the  first phase only. 
In addition, if the utility has been i n  existence for 
at least one year, provide actual  operating expenses 
for the  most recent twelve months. Provide a separate 
e x h i b i t  for the  water and sewer systems. 

Exhibit &e Footnote 1, Pacre 1 - A schedule showing 
the projected capi ta l  structure, including the  methods 
of financjtng the  construction and operation of the  
utility u n t i l  the  utility reaches 80 percent of t h e  
designed capacity of the system(s). 

Exhibit See Footnote 1. Pase 1 - A cost s tudy,  
including customer growth projections, which supports 
the  proposed rates, miscellaneous service charges, 
customer deposits and service availability charges. A 
sample cost  study is enclosed w i t h  the application 
package. Provide a separate cost study for the water 
and sewer systems. 
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Exhibit &e Footnote 1. Page 1 - If the  base facility 
and usage rate structure (as defined in R u l e  25-  
3 0 . 4 3 7 ( 6 ) ,  F . A . C . )  is not utilized for metered 
service, provide an alternative rate structure and a 
statement supporting why the alternative is 
appropriate. 

E x h i b i t  -2 Footnote 1, Pacre 1 - If a different return 
on common equity other than the  current equity 
leverage formula established by order of the  Public 
Service C o m m i s s i o n  pursuant to Section 367.081 ( 4 )  , 
F . S .  is utilized, provide competent substantial 
evidence supporting the use of a different return on 
common equity.  Information on the cur ren t  equity 
leverage formula may be obtained by contacting t h e  
accounting section at the listed number. 

PART VALLO WAWCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONSTRUCTION IAFUDC) 

Please note tho following: 

PART VI 

A )  

Utilities obtaining i n i t i a l  certificates pursuant to 
Rule 25-30.033, F.A.C., are authorized to accrue AFUDC 
for projects found eligible pursuant to Rule 25- 
30.116(1), F . A . C .  

A discounted monthly AFUDC rate calculated in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.116(3), F . A . C . ,  shall be 
used to insure that the annual  AFUDC charged does not 
exceed autlhorized levels. 

The date t.he utility shall begin to charge the  AFUDC 
rate shall be the date the certificate of 
authorization is issued to the  utility so that such 
rate can apply to initial construction of the utility 
facilities. 

TERRITORY DESCRIPTION AND MAPS 

Exhibit - K - An accurate description, using 
township, range and section references as specified in 
R u l e  25-30.030(2), Florida Administrative Code. If 
the  water and wastewater service territories are 
different, provide separate descriptions. 
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B) TERRITORY MAP8 

PART V I 1  

A) 

Exhibit - L - One copy of an official county 
tax  assessment map or other map showing township, 
range and section w i t h  a scale such as 1"=2001 or 
1"=400' on which t h e  proposed t e r r i t o r y  is plotted by 
use of metes and bounds or quarter sections and w i t h  a 
defined reference point of beginning. If the water 
and wastewater service territories are different, 
provide separate maps. 

SYSTEM MAP8 

Exhibit &e Footnote 1. Pase 1 - One copy of detailed 
map(s) showing proposed lines, facilities and the 
territory proposed. Additionally, ident i fy  any 
existing 1,ines and facilities. Map(s) should be of 
s u f f i c i e n t  scale and detail to enable correlation with 
a description of the  territory to be served. Provide 
separate maps for water and wastewater systems. 

NOTICE OF .ACTUAL APPLICATION 

Exhibit A l a t e - F i l e d  M - An affidavit that the  notice 
of actual application was given in accordance w i t h  
Section 367.045(1) ( a ) ,  Florida Statutes, and Rule 
2 5 - 3 0 . 0 3 0 ,  Florida Administrative Code, by regular 
mail to the following: 

(1) the governing body of the municipality, county, or 
counties in which the system or the territory 
proposed to be served is located; 

( 2 )  the privately owned water and wastewater utilities 
that :hold a certificate granted by the Public 
Service Commission and t h a t  are located within the 
county in which the utility or the  t e r r i t o r y  
proposed to be served is located; 

( 3 )  if any por t ion  of the proposed territory is within 
one m j . l e  of a county boundary, the utility shall 
notice the privately owned utilities located in 
the bordering counties and holding a certificate 
granted by the Commission; 

( 4 )  the re.giona1 planning council; 

(5) t h e  O f f i c e  of Public Counsel; 
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( 6 )  the Public Service Commissionts Director of 
Recordia and Reporting; 

(7) the  appropriate regional of f i ce  of the  Department 
of Environmental Protection; 

( 8 )  and thle appropriate water management district. 

Copies of the  Notice and a list of entities noticed 
shall accompany the  affidavit.THIS MAY BE A LATE-FILED 
EXHIBIT 

Exhibit - N / A  - An affidavit that the notice of 
actual application was given in accordance with Rule 
25-30.030, Florida Administrative Code, by regular 
mail or personal delivery to each customer of the  
system. .A copy of the not ice  shall accompany the 
affidavit. THIS MAY BE A LATE-FILED EXHIBIT. 

Exhibit - L ate-Filed N - Immediately upon completion 
of publication, an affidavit that the  not ice  of actual 
applicatian was published once in a newspaper of 
general c i r c u l a t i o n  in the  t e r r i t o r y  in accordance 
with Rule 25-30.030, Florida Administrative Code. A 
copy of the proof of publication shall accompany the  
affidavit. THIS MAY BE A LATE-FILED EXHIBIT. 

PART VI11 FILING FEE 

I n d i c a t e  t h e  filing fee enclosed w i t h  the  application: 

s 1,50Cl ( f o r  water) and s 1,500 
( fo r  wastewater). 

Yote: Pursuan t  to Rule 25-30.020, Florida 
Administrative Code, t h e  amount of the  filing fee as 
follows: 

(1) For appl i ca t ions  in which the  utility has the 
capacity to serve up to 500 ERC's, the filing fee 
shall be $ 7 5 0 .  

(2) For applications in which the utility has the 
capacity to serve from 501 to 2 , 0 0 0  ERC's the  
filing fee shall be $1,500. 

( 3 )  For applications i n  which the utility has the 
capacity to serve from 2,001 ERC'S to 4 , 0 0 0  ERC'S 
the  filing fee shall be $2,250. 

10 



( 4 )  For applications in which the utility has the 
capaci,ty to serve more than 4 , 0 0 0  ERCls the  filing 
fee s h m a l l  be $ 3 , 0 0 0 .  

PART IS TARIFF 

Exhibit See Footnote 1, Page 1 - The or ig ina l  and t w o  
copies of water and/or wastewater tariff (8 )  containing all 
rates, classifications, charges, rules and regulations. 
Sample tariffs are enclosed w i t h  the application package. 

11 



PART X AFFIDAVIT 

I Martin J. G o l d s t e i n ,  President of Dana Utilitv 
Corporation (applicant) do solemnly swear or affirm that 
the  facts stated in the forgoing application and all 
exh ib i t s  attached thereto are true and correct and that 
sa id  statements of fact  a complete 
statement of the m a t t e r  to 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this L P  day of 
1999 by Martin J. Goldstein 

w h o  is personally known to me L/ 

or produced identification 
Type of Identification Produced 

CHERYL 8. GRISWOLD 
6/2/2001 Notsry Pablic's -Signature 

-ndly k w n  ( 1 Other I.D 

Name of Notary Public 

* If applicant is a corporation, the  affidavit must be 
made by the  president or other  officer authorized by the  
by-laws of the corporation to act  for it. If applicant is 
a partnership or associat ion,  a member of the organization 
authorized to make such affidavit shall execute same. 

12 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT A 

(Need f o r  Service) 

T h e  Lake  Merial Development ( L a k e  Merial) is a planned unit 
development located in t h e  Sand Hills area of Bay County,  
F lor ida ,  near Panama City on Florida’s Gulf  Coast.  The 
project  will be developed on approximately 2,100 acres, 
approximately 95% of which is owned by Lake Merial 
Development Company, Inc., a Florida Corporation and sole 
shareholder of Dana Utility Corporat ion (Dana). The balance 
of the land in the proposed service territory has been 
dedicated by Lake Merial to t h e  Bay County School Board. 
The land on which t h e  water and wastewater treatment p l a n t s  
will be loca ted  w i l l  be sold to Dana a f t e r  the Application 
f o r  Certificates is approved. 

L a k e  Merial will h c l u d e  a m i x t u r e  of land uses, including 
residential, h o t e l ,  commercial shopping cen te r ,  recreation, 
conservation, g o l f  course and a new public school. Bay 
County approved these l a n d  uses and the development through 
the Development Agreement entered  into on Februa ry  2, 1999. 

The Agreement approves t h e  construction of approximately 
650  residential dwell ing units, a shopping center, hotel, 
parks, and a go l f  course and c o u n t r y  club. It provides  €or 
a 30-acre site to be dedicated t o  t h e  Bay County School 
Board f o r  construction of a public school w i t h  
approximately 1 6 0 0  students to serve the Sand Hills area. 

The Development A g r e e m e n t  requires Lake Merial to provide 
to the property a sanitary sewer system and a potable water 
system ( t h e  Utility Systems) by the summer of 2000 .  The 
construction of the school and t h e  development of the 
property will only be able to proceed with construction o f  
the utility systems. The design, permitting and 
construction schedule f o r  the utility contemplates services 
being available ,for t h e  school  by March 1, 2 0 0 0  w i t h  
residential servilze approximately six months t h e r e a f t e r .  
Any delay in t h e  construction of t h e  plants could 
jeopardize meeting these t a rge t  dates, 

A special  feature of t h e  community is the Deane Bozeman 
Learning Center, an innovative educational environment for 
kindergarten through e i g h t h  grade. The Bay County School 



Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

District and Lake Merial worked  t o g e t h e r  to b r i n g  this 
state-of-the-art educational center to L a k e  Merial and the 
surrounding Sand Hill Community, It is expected to become a 
f l agsh ip  f o r  t h e  3ay County School  District. The 
groundbreaking ceremony t o o k  place on April 12, 1999 and 
the school is scheduled t o  open in August 2 0 0 0 .  With t h e  
h igh  visibility, the School District i s  anxious to see 
construction begin on the utility plants necessary to 
provide service.  The construction schedule f o r  t h e  District 
includes a cons t ruc t ion  completion date of March 1, 2 0 0 0 .  
The l e t t e r  from the Bay County School District identified 
as Exhibit A-1 c o n f i r m s  the urgency  in receiving Water and 
Wastewater Certificates to maintain t h e  schedule. 

The Sand Hills Area o f  Bay County i s  r e l a t i v e l y  
undeveloped. This, area  around Lake Merial has been 
developed in one to five p l u s  acre tracts t h a t  utilize 
individual water wells and septic tank systems. Lake 
Merial, through Panhandle Engineering, contacted t h e  public 
utilities whose w a t e r  systems were closest to L a k e  Merial. 
These t w o  utilities, Bay  County and Gulf Coast Elec t r ic  
Cooperative, Inc. a r e  between s i x  t o  eight miles from the 
p r o j e c t .  The response l e t t e r s ,  identified as Exhibits A-2 
and A-3, indicate water service would not be available f o r  
3 to 5 years  at t h . e  e a r l i e s t  and even longer  f o r  wastewater 
services. 

The C i t y  of Lynn Haven, t h e  closest City, was a l s o  not able 
to provide servic ,e .  Water and wastewater service to Lake 
Merial from alternative suppliers is not a v i a b l e  option. 



FROM : Panasonic FAX SYSTEM PH0t.E NO. : Rug. 24 1999 10:34Wl P1 

1311 BalMaAvenue 

Panama C i  Florida 
32401 

b i r d  Mambers: 

Ron Danzey 
OiStriCl 1 

, - .  .- .. 

Johnny 6 W  

District 2 

O i s m  4 

August 19,1939 

Flwida Public Sewice Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

RE: Water tmd Sewer Utility Service 

TO Whom tt May Conam: 

The Bay Distiict Schools, Florida has planned a school to serve the 
Sand Hilts m3a of Bay County for some time. We ar0 meeting this 
objective by wrking M h  ihe Lake Merial Developmnt, W b  has 
agreed to provide the land for the project, the Dean0 Boreman 
Learning Center. 

On April 12 of this year a groundbreaking ceremony took place and 
construction kqpn on thb statelof-the-art fauhty. The school Will meet 
the educational needs for kindergarten Wough eighth grades and will 
handle betwen 1500 and 1600 8ttudents. While the BoEernan Center 
will have technicat and computer capabilities consistent with the new 
millennium to exercise the mind, it also rsquirea the infrastructure 
necessary to sup@ that mission, R e  School District and Lake 
Merial have agreed that Lake Marial will provide the utilities necessary 
to serve the rim schc~~l by March 1, 2000. This wiil allow the District 
enough time 'to finalize the cl>nstruction and prepare for our inaugural 
CIaSS. Our grand opening for The Center is scheduied for Augmt 21, 
2000. 

I understand that a certificate from the Public service Commission is 
required bdwe Lake Merial a n  receive a pernit and begin 
oonstrudon of the utility plants. t am requesting on behalf of the Bay 
District Schools #at the application be processed as quickly as 
possible and the certificates issuWso Corrsttuction on the plants can 
hegin and we a n  meet our goal. 

Thank yar for: your mnsideration. 

Y' - .  

MikeJones 6' 
District Supei 

Mike Gavlak 
District 5 

Cf: Martin J. Goldstein, Lake Merial 
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PANAMA CITY, FL 32404 
850-8724785 

991 97 

March 30, I999 

James H. Slonina, P.E., President 
Panhandle Engineering, Inc. 
3005 S. Highway 77 
Lynn Haven, F L 32444 

Re: Lake Merial Public Utility Availability 

Dear Mr. Slonina.: 

As previously discussed, and in response to your question in your 
correspondence of March 22, 1999, there is no possibility that public 
utilities support will be available to your property by the stated date of (on 
or before) October 1 , 1999. That being stated, our long-range plans are to 
extend utility sewices to the northwest portion of the County, but the 
earliest availability date for water services would be 3 to 5 years and even 
longer before wastewater services would be available. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please let me 
know. 

Sincerely, 

&Xda_ .  
Clifton "Travis" Windham, P.E. 
Utility Services Director 

ClWl'kr 

cc: County Manager 
Files 
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GULF COAST ELECTRIC COOPhRATlVE, INC. 

A Twchstop Energf‘” Partner && - 
// ,/’ April 2,1999 , 

I 
i 

i Panhandle Engineering, Inc. 
James H. Slonina. P.E. , 
3005 S. Highway 77 
Lynn Haven, Florida 32444 

Dear Jim: 

This Ietter is in response to your Ietter of March 22, I999 regarding the water 
and wastewater collection services for the Lake M e d  project. 

You are somewhat familru with our plans for a water system fbr the Southpoftl Resota 
Beach area and construction should begin in the next few weeks. Our Board of Trustees have 
discussed plans for wastewater collection and treatment within the next 5 to 10 years in that area. 

It is unfortunate for us, fil~m the watter/wastewater treatment standpoint, that the timctabIe 
for your project is somewhat ahad of otic system. I wodd have been most interestud in being 
able to sene the Lake M d  arai waterhastewater needs. 

The watedwastewater requirements of the Lake M d  project cannot, however, be 
met by Gulf Coast EIectric Cuopwative within the timefitme of October 1, 1999. 

I look forward to our continued good relationship on this project with Mr. Goldstein and 
your firm and anticipate you will Ibe mst p i e d  with our service. 

Sincerely, 

4- 
Roy Barnes 
C.E.O./General Manager 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT B 

(Consist:ency w i t h  Comprehensive P l a n s )  

To the best of Dana Utility Corporation's knowledge, the  
provision of w a t e r  and wastewater service to the  Lake 
Merial Development is consistent with t h e  water and 
wastewater sections of t h e  Bay County Comprehensive Plan, 
as approved by t h e  Department of Community Affairs. 

This is evidenced by t h e  approval of  the p r o j e c t  by Bay 
County,  F l o r i d a .  The Development Agreement with Bay County 
was entered into on Februa ry  2 ,  1 9 9 9  by t h e  owner of the 
Applicant. The Agreement provides, among o t h e r  t h i n g s ,  f o r  
the Developer to provide sanitary sewer and potab le  water 
to the  p ro jec t  and: f i n d s  that t h e  Development Agreement is 
consistent with t h e  County's 2 0 0 0  Comprehensive P l a n .  This 
Agreement is recorded in the Official Records of Bay 
County, F lo r ida ,  hook 1 8 5 0 ,  pages 1 7 9  through 197. See 
Exhibit B-1. 



Hills area of Bay Cuunty,,Florida, as more particularly described in Exhibit A, which is attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter the "Property"); and 

B. WHF,RJ?,AS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part Iz, Florida Statutes, and Section . 

. .  
12-01 -08 of the Bay County Land Use Code, the County is  authorized to enter into development 

agreements with owners or deveiopcrs of real property, subject to the procedures and requirements 

of @163~.3220-163,3243, Florida Statutes; and 

C. WHERXAS, on Dlecember 16, 1997, pursuant to Ordinance 97-13, the County 

adopted a revised comprehensive plan amendment which changed the land use designation on the 

subject Property &om SilvicuIture and Agriculture to Planned Unit Development (PvD), a land use 

category that was, and is, consistent with the land use categories currently in effect in Bay County; 

and 

D. WEKF,REAS, on December 16, 1997, pursuant to County Resolution No. 2076, the 

County also adopted its Evaluation and Appraisal Report ("EAR") in conformity with 8 163.3 19 1, 

Florida Statutes, which incorporated a new planning strategy to guide and control hture development 

Exhibit B- 1, page 1 
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'THIS XbEVEI,UPMEBT A,GRF,EMF,NT (the "Agreement") is entered into this day 

, 1999, by and between BAY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

and on b&?of BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision, having 
i 

an address at 3 10 West 6th Street, Panama City, FIorida 32401 (hereinafter the "County"), and 

MERTAL DEVELOPME'NT CORPORATION, INC., a Florida corporatioq having an 

address at 129 Church Street, Suite 300, New Haven, Connecticut 065 10 (hereinafter "Developer"). 

A. ' WHEREGS, the Dtweloper is the owner of certain real property located in the Sand 
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and associated services in the mrd, urban and urbanizing are? of the County in order to encourage 

the most appropriate use of h d ;  and . 

E. ,WECEREAS, the new planning strategy adapted as part of the County's Evaluation 

and Appraisal Report, hown as the "'wide open spaces" strategy, is based, in part, on directing future 

higher density rural development into one of three discrete, relatively concentrated rural community 
I 

services areas, to better preserve smd mahtah  the predominantly rural character of northern'Bay 

County, limit urban sprawl in the rural area, and provide for a more cost-efficient delivery of public 

services and facilities consistent with land use designations; and 

F. W,HEREAS, on JanuaFy 3 1, 1998, the Department of Community Affairs found 

Ordinance 97-13 in compliance; and 

G. WHEREAS, the Developer desires that the Property be made a part of the Rural 

Community Overlay district for t'he Sand €Ells area and desires to support the County's rural 

community planning strategy in its development of the Property, which is to be 

Merial, Florida;" arid . 

, €3. WEEERF,AS, the County desires that the Property be developed 

known as "Lake 

in a manner that 

supports the rural community concept for the Sand Ells area during the interim period that its,EAR- 

based amendments are undergoing compliance review, and thereafter; and 

I. WHEREAS, by establishing the mix of uses that will be permitted.on the Property; 

including the density and intensity of such uses, this Development Agreement will enable the C&ty 

to ensure that development will proceed in conformity with the rural community planning strategy 

and will enable the Developer to commence developing the Property in conformity with the rural 

Page 2 of 13 
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community planning strategy prior to, and duringi2he time period that will be needed to adopt the 

C o u n t y ? ~  EAR-based amendments in conformity with Chapter 163; Part II, Florida Stahlt'es; 

. 

NOW, TEF,WFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and Developer hereby agree as 

follows: 
i 

r n r n N A N T S  AND C Q m m O w  

1. s Trye The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated' herein 

by reference. 

The red property subject to this Agreement is the Property as 

described in Exhibit A. The project that is to be developed on the Property will be known as "Lake 

Merial, Florida." Legal ownership of the Property is vested in Lake Merial Development 

* .  2. 

Corporation, Inc. 

3. on of -& The duration of this Agreexnent shall be ten (1 0) years from 

the Effective Date. The Agreement may be extended by mutual consent of the Developer (or a 

successor-in-interest) and the Ccunty, subject to the public hearing requirements specified in 

0 163.3225, Florida Statutes. 

4. Rmduwuh-Permittede* . The Bay County Comprehensive 

Plan designates the Property as Planned Unit Development (FVD) on its Future Land Use Map, The 

PUD land use designation also sewes as the County's zoning for the Property, which allows the 

Property to develop with a mixture of uses, including residential, cbmmeccid, publidsemi-public, 

recreation, and conservation, at the densities, intensities, and mix of uses prescribed in the County's 

existing Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Code. In accordance with the terms and conditions of 

Page3 of 13 
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Ordinance 97-13, the Lake Meri,al, FIorida.PUD will be designed to contain 648 dwelling units 

clustered on the subject site, and will be dkeloped in accordance with the recommendations adopted’ 

by the County hi its .Evaluation and Appraisal Report for the Rural Communhy Overlay districts, to 

wit: 1 

! 
(4 US- -4: Residentid, public, civic, and commercial uses. Public uses 
include parks, plalygrounds, greenway t d q  golf courses, associated facilities, and 
other similar recreational uses. Civic uses include schooIs, religious buildings, 
libraries, post off ices, meeting halls, club houses, recreational facilities, county 
buildings, and similar facilities. Commercial uses will be limited to neighborhood- 
scale businesses, indudhg professional ofices, restaurants, retail stores and services, 
and lodging, provided that these non-residential uses are compatible in scale and 
intensity with the character of the surrounding residentid areas. 

(b) Pensity dlowed: Six Hundred Forty Eight (648) Residential DwtiIing 
Units. 

(4 
floor area ratio of 50 percent (0.5 FAR). 

hiens  ity iaowed: The intensity of non-residential uses will not exceed a 

(4 Mix- of Usa: Residential uses Will account for no more than sixty 
percent (60%) of h e  total land mea. Civic and public uses will account for no less 
than five percent (S%) of the total land area. Commercial uses Will account for no 
more than ten percent (10%) of the total land area. Open space wiII account for no 
less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the PUD. 

(4 --: Commercial uses will be limited to collector and arterial 
intersections, intmections of subdivision collectors and arterial or collector roads, 
and areas that are specifically designated and platted for neighborhood commercial 
uses. Commercial uses will not occupy more than fifteen percent (15%) of the 
frontage of any one mile segment of a collector or arterial roadway. 

These land uses correspond to, and are in conformity with, the land uses authorized under the 

County’s Comprehensive Plan, adopted pursuant to Ordinance 90-06, as amended. 

5 .  Lake r’ . Fbrida. Site PIan, The proposed site plan (“Plan”) for the Lake 

Merial, Florida PUD is attached hereto as Composite Exhilit B and incorporated by reference. 

Page 4 of 13 
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Composite Exhibit B consists of a tieries of maps for land use, site plan,+and plats whkh.identify the 

underlying residential; commercial; public, and civic land uses for the PUD, and includes the 

arrangement 'of residential areas th.at will ba platted during the life of tl$s Agreement in accordance 

with the conditions specified in Paragraph 10, below. This Plan c o n f o ~ s  to the density, intensity, 

and mix of uses outlined in Paragraph 4, above. Following the County's adoption of the Rural 
i 

Community Overlay district for the Lake MeriaI, Florida PUD, pursuant to the County's EAR-based 

amendments, the County may, if necwaq, revise the PUI) designation for the Property on its Future 

Land Use Map to identify the speci6c land uses authorized Within the PUD as referenced in Paragraph 

4, above; provided, however, that no such revision shall be applied in a manner that operates to 

prevent development of the Property in conformity yith the uses or the platting depicted in 

Composite Exhibit B, or the time limits, phases, or order of development approved by theCounty. 

6 .  AR;us. In addition to the defined uses authorized within the P ~ ,  as 

referenced in Paragraph 4, above, specific areas of the Property are delineated as "Conservation 

k e a s "  in Composite Exhibit B. The designated Conservation.Areas will be utilized for passive 

recreational activities only, so'lorig as these activities that are compatible &th the protection and 

preservation of the conservation art:a resource. No other uses or development will be allowed within 

these areas. Residential development shalI be clustered ,away from the Conservation Areas to ensure 

the consetvation and protection of these natural resources i d  the preservation of open space. 

Prone*. The Lake Meid  project will be developed ... 7. JWdic Facilities: ta I Serve 

in the phases or stages delineated in.Composite Exhibit 8, and in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of Paragraph 10, below. Consistent with the County's requirement that pubIic facilities 

be available concurrent with the impacts of development, the Developer agrees that sanitary sewer, 
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. .potable water, drainage, roads, &reation, and open space facilities shall be in, place and available to 

sewe the development of the Lake Merid Property no iater than the issuance of a plat, certificate of 

occupancy, or the functional equivalent by the County in accordance with the terms and conditions 

of Paragraph 10, below. The Developer agrees that it will not seek a plat, certscate of occupancy, 

or the functional equivalent for the lots in any phase wrtil such time as the County has determined that 

concurrency has been met for that particular phase. 

1 

The County agrees that the timing, sequencing, and phasing of development, as referenced 

in Paragraph 10, below, and as delineated in Composite Exhibit B, shall determine the timing, 

sequencing, and phasing for the construction of sanitary sewer, potable water, roads, drainage, 

recreation, and open space facilities, based upon the Devdoper's compliance with the following 

conditions: 

(a) Sanitary Sewer Facilities: The Developer shall, at its own expense, provide 
sanitary sewer to stme the Property. In accordance with the timing, sequencing, and 
phasing of the development as described in Paragraph 10, below, and as delineated 
in Composite Exhillit B, sanitary sewer to serve the  st 256 lots shall be in place and 
operational no later than eighteen (18) months following the execution of this 
Agreement by the parties. S d q  Sewer to - m e  the next 200 lots shall be in place 
and'operational no later than thirty-sk (36) months following the execution of this 
Agteement. Sanitary Sewer to serve the remainder of the Propetty shall be in place 
no later than sixty (60) months following the execution of this Agreement. 

(b) Potable Water Facilities: The Developer shaU, at its own expense, provide a 
potable water system to serve the Property. In accordance with thc th ing ,  
sequencing, and phasing of the d d o p m e n t  as described in Paragraph IO, below, and 
as delineated in Composite Exhibit 13, a potable water system to serye the first 256 
lots shall be in place and operational no later than eighteen (1 8) months foUowing the 
execution of this Agreement by the parties. The potable water system to serve the 
next 200 lots shall be in place and operational no later than thirty-six (36) months 
following the execution of this Agreement. The potable water system to sene the 
remainder of the Property shall be in place no later than sixty (60) months following 
the execution of this Agreement, 

Page 6 of 13 
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(c) Roads and Ilrainage FaciIities: The Developer S h d ,  at ‘its own expense, 
provide the internal road and drainage facilities necessary to serve the Property. In 
accordance with the thing, sequencing, and phasing of the development as described 
h Paragraph 10, below, and as delineated in Composite Exhibit B, the h e m a l  roads 
and drainage facilities to serve the first 256 lots shall be iri place and operational no 
later than eighteen (18) months following the execution of this Agreement by the 
parties. The internid roads and drainage fadiees necessary to serve the next 200 lots 
shall be in place and operational no later thin thkty-sk (36) months following the 
exmution of this hgreement. The internal roads and drainage facilities necessary to 
seme the remainder of the Property shall be in place no later than sixty (60) months 
following the execution of this Agreement. 

The external roadway facility providing access to and from the Property is SR 77, 
which is presently meeting or exceeding the level of senice standard required for 
M c  Wlation ficifities as approved in the County’s Comprehensive Plan. In the 
event traffic impacts fiom the development of the Property require mitigation in the 
form of acceleratioddeceleration lanes, turning bays, or other such measures as 
deemed to be necessary by the Florida Department of Transportation and Bay County 
to ensure smooth continuous tr&c flow on SR 77, the Developer agrees to provide 
such mitigation. The State of Florida, Department of Transportation P O T ) ,  has 
proposed widening the section of SR 77 adjacent to the Property, which is presently 
in the project design and engineering phase; however, for purposes of this Agreement, 
the present capaciw of SR 77, coupl+ with the Developer‘s agreement to provide the 
necessary mitigation to offset any impacts from the development of the Lake Merial 
Property, is suscient to maintain the e&g level of service standard for SR 77, 
irrespective of fulure widening by FDOT.. Fsr the term of this Agreement, the 
County agrees to make good faith efforts to support and obtain all road and transit 
improvements that will enhance the access to and from the Property. 

(d) Recreational and Open Space Facilities:. The County’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Use Code provide that Bay County presently has adequate recreitional 
facilities and open space to meet the future demands of the County. Although 
adequate recreational facilities and open space presumptively exist, the Lake Merial 
project will add sigificant acreage to the County’s current inventory of recreational 
facilities and open space in conformity with the mix of uses specified in Paragraph 4, 
above, and as more particularly described below: 

(I) Ihr0ug.h the clustering of residential development away fiom the natural 
resources on the Property, the Developer will retain a minimum of twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the project site, -approxhately 500 acres, as open space; and 

(2) Approhately 190 acre9 will be designated as Conservation Areas, which 
will be available for passive recreational uses only; and 
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(3) Lake Merid itself, which will provide a variety of passive and active 
recreational opportunities; and 

(4) The Developer, at its expense, will also provide a golf course, a golf' 
practice a m ,  balI fields, tennis courts, and a Series of neighborhood parks that 
will provide active recreational facilities. 

Based upon the presumption that adequate capacity already .exists'for recreation and open space 
1 .  

within the County, and on the fact that the DeveIoper will si@cantly add to the inventory of 

existing recreational facilities anid open space, the County agrees that the Project, as reflected in 

Composite Exhibit B and as proposed herein, satisfies the Counws concurrency requirements for 

recreation and open space. 

a. If Course U g e  ment Plana . As a condition of this 

AgTeemept, and prior to 'the County issuing a development order or permit to commence any 

development on the Property, tht: Developer shaI1 submit an Environmental Management Plan and 

a Golf Course Management Plan to the County for review and approvat. The purpose of the 

Management Plans- will be to identify the natural resources, habitats and ecological systems located 

on the Property, and to establish 13tandards and guidelines for the development of the Property that 

will ensure the immediate and long term conservation and protech of the identified resources. 

9. r M m r n e n L  Following the County's approval of this Development 

Agreement, the County's approval of the Developer's Environmental and Golf Course Management 

Plans, the County's issuance of a development order in accordance with the terms and conditions of 

Paragraph 10, below, and Composite Exhibit B, as appEcabIe, and the County's issuance 'of a 

Certificate of Concurrency, when required, development can commence on the Property. .Any 

additional local development permits which may be needed for development of the Property, or any 
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phase thereof, including perinits for land clearing, ter;lpov uses, or right-of-way use, will be 

obtained prior to the start of constniction. Any state or federal permits required to commence 

I -  

. .  

development of any phase of ,the subject Property shall be obtained prior to the issuance of a 

development order for that phase. The failure of this Agreement to address a particular permit, 

p e d e  condition, term, or restriction applicable to any hture development of the Property shall not 

relieve the Developer of the necessity of compIyhg with federal, state, and local permitting 

I 

requirements, conditions, terms, or  restrictions as may be applicable. 

10. o f  D e v d m .  The County acknowledges that the most efficient 
4 . .  

development of the Prop- depen,ds upon numerous factors, such as market demand, interest rates, 

'competition, and similar factors. Generally, it will be most economically beneficial to the ultimate. 

purchasers to have the rate of devdopment determined by the Developer, Accordingly, the timing, 

sequence, and phasing of developrnent shdl be as determined by the Developer, in accordance with 

the underlying land uses and Composite Exhibit B, subject to the requirements for concurrency and 

consistency with the existing requirements in the County's Cdmprehensive Plan and Land Use Code, 

and the other terns and coriditi0n.s of this Agreement. 

d Tk&ation of W. The DeveIoper has dedicated approximately 

30 acres o f  land in the northwest corner of the Properly to the Bay County School Board for 

construction of a public school to serve the Sand Hills area. The school site is more particularly 

* '  + .  11. 

identified on Composite Exhibit 13. The Developer has agreed to provide sanitary sewer, potable 

water, and internal access to the! site from the Property, The Bay County School Board Will be 

responsible for obtaining all permits to develop the school site, and for the mitigating any impacts the 

development of the school: may cause to SR 77, as deemed necessary by Bay County or FDOT. 
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Xn the went the School Board fiils to construct a school \riithifi five ( 5 )  years, oWmship of the site 

will revert back to the Developer. ' 

. 

. .  

12. CO&& . The development of the 

Property as a PUD is consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the County's currently adopted 
I . .  

Comprehensive Plan. The Developer recognizes that the development of the Property must also be 

consistent with all goals, objectives, and policies of the Couhy's currently adopted Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Use Code. 

13. of Phm. Iln application to amend or modify Composite Exhibit 13 shall 

be in writing, and shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of the County's Land Use 

Code. Any amendment or modiification of .the Plan, including Composite Exhibit B, shall be 
, .  

consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies in the County's Comprehensive Plan, then in effect. 

14. Annual Status Regofi. No later than twelve (12) months following the execution 

of this Agreement, and annually thereafter for the duration of this Agreement, the Developer shall 

submit a status report to the County for the purpose of demonstrating that the DeveIoper is 

complying in good fhith with the teims and conditions of this Development Agreement. The report 

shall provide sufficient information to allow an assessment of the progress being made ucder the 

terms of the Development Agreement, and an assessmer$ of the deveIopment that has been approved 

by the Development Agreement, but which the Developer has not started or completed. The report 

shall also advise the County as to any changes in or to the Property that have occurred in the prior 

twelve months that may, or will, require an amendment to the Development Agreement. The County 

agrees that during years 6 through 10 of this Agreement, it shdl'review the Property subject to this 

Development Agreement and make a deteniination as to whether there has been demonstrated good 
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faith compliance with this Agreement. The County further agrees that it +shall incorporate its Gdings 

into a report the County will prepare arid submit to the Developer i d  the' state land planning agency, 

in conformity with the requirements of 8163.3235, Florida Statutes. 

15. ' m. If the County or Developer fail to carry out any of the terms or provisions 
I 

contained herein, the affected pay  or parties shall'be entitled to all remedies available at law or in 

equity as shall be necessary to achieve the intent of this Agreement, including without limitation, the 

right to obtain specific performance and mandatory injunction, rescission, and the right to such.other 

remedy or remedies aS the court hafiing jurisdiction deems appropriate. None of these remedies shall 

,be deemed exclusive of one another, or exclusive of any other remedy which the court .having 
A .  

jurisdiction deems appropriate. Such remedies shall be granted either singularIy, or in combination, 

and to the extent necessary to achieve the intent of the Agreement. 

m. The parties #ill attempt h good faith to resolve by mediation any 

controversy or claim of any kind or nature arising out of or relating to this Agreement prior to the 

commencement of any litigation. If the parties are unable to agree upon a mediator to serve, the 

mediator shall be selected by the Chief Judge of the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit of the 

State of Florida, upon application being made by either party. The mediation shall be set by the 

mediator. The mediation process shall be concluded within 30 days after the mediator is selected. 

. *  16. 

17. Terms of Agreema.  The terns and conditions of this Agreement are binding on 

all parties hereto, and shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, their successors, assigns, 

predecessors, heirs, and agents. h y  successor-in-hterest of a portion or alI of the Devefoper or a 

successots interest in the Property must execute and deliver to the County a written acknowledgment 

Page 11 of 13 Exhibit B-1, page 1 1 



++.OFFICIAL RECORDS * *  
' BOOK: 1850 PAGE: 190 

' that the successor-in-interest is aware o'f 'understands, &nd agrees to be bound by the tehs'of this ' .. ' 

.. . - .  , .  . . . .  . - .  
. .  

, ;- 

Agreement. 

18. Miscellaneous. 

a. , B m r d  ing, This Agreement shall be' recorded in the public records of Bay 
! .  

County, Florida., A copy of this Agrment shall be delivered by the County to the state land planning 

agency ofthe State ofFloridq the Department of Community Afxairs, within fourteen (14) calendar 

days after this Agreement is recorded in the public records. 

b. mct ive  D&. This. Agreement shd1 be'-ef€ective thirty (30) days after it is 

received by the state land planning, agency of the State of Florida. 

C. m d .  This Agreement may only be amended by a subsequent written 

agreement entered into and executed by the parties. 

d. N e c p J r o c e d w .  The parties agree that this Agreement has been 

entered into after compliance with all applicable procedures which reIate to the adoption, execution, 

enforceability or validity of this Agreement. 

e. Headings: The headings of the paragraphs h'this Agreement are for 

convenience of the reader and do not control the meanhg of the provision of this Agreement. 

f. Nlotiw. All written notices and demands of any kind which either party may 

be required or may desire to server upon the other party in connection with this Agreement may be 

served (as an akernative to personal service) by registered or certified mail. 

B. , 
S e w  'rabimx. If any part of this Agreement is finally found by 'a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue 

to be enforceable. . 
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. .  

representatives, have executed thi!r Agreement on the date or dates set forth below. 

IN WITNESS BEREOY, the parties, by. and through the undersigned duly authorized 
I .  

@+I - 

ATTEST: 
form: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF BAY 

Attorneys for Bay Couuty 

UKJZ MERIAL DEVFLOPMENT 
CORPORATION, lNC. 

' - By: 
' Martin Goldstein, President 

M A  
to me 
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~ A P ( : E I ,  t - . (.'ornmence at thi? Northwent Cornet U T  Sectiun IS, Towriship 
-' I $ r ) i l t  Ratiyt 14 Weat', Ilny Clmlnty, F l o r i d a .  Thence S01012 '22 i1w 

nLoncj I ~ P  went linc uf  eafd  Scctlon 1.5 f o r  4 0 9 . 7 3  feet to t h e  
m t ~ t . r ! r ~  \tic of cona t ruc t . i nn  of a G u l  f P o w e r .  Company Eanerncnt (100 . 
t o u t  wide), deacrlbed in Deed Bouk 116, 105, L r l  the Public Records 
r,f 8;iy C:tlunty, F l o r i d a , ,  for t h e  Paint. nf Reginning. Thence 
~ 5 ~ ~ 0 ~ ' ~ f l " E  along the cenkerline of cohgtjuctian of said Gulf P o w e r  
Company Eaeement f o r  9 3 a  . 8 7  feet: thence S 0 1 ° L 2 ' 4 5 " i W  for 2478.33 
feet !.hi? centerline I.,f a dirt road: thence N73°10'071fW along 
eald renkerline of 2 4 3 . 0 1  f e e t ;  thence N 7 4 e 4 6 ' 3 8 " W  along eaid 
csnt~rllrw for 5 1 7 . 3 1  feet. r.n Raid w e e t  line of Section 1 5 ;  thence 
N 0 1 * l % ' > 2 N K  al.ang eaId went line for 2R57.26 feet. to the Point  of 
Beg i r i r i l r i q  

PARCEL, - 1  I : S e c t l o n  16, Totmahip L South, Range 14 Weet., Bay 
. .  count .y .  F1 nrida . , , '  

I S S S  AND EXCEPT: Commence at the Norkhcaat corner of Section 
16. 'rownship 1 south,  Range 14 West, Bay County, Florida.  
Thence N88O14'33"W along the North  line of said Section 15 for  
516 3 0  f e e t  to the  center l ine  of conatruction of a Gulf P o w e r  
r:umpany Eaeemenk ( L O O  foot wide) ae described in Deed. Book 
116, Page 105, 'of t h e  Public Recorde of Bay County, Flor ida .  
Thence continue N88@14'33"W along eaid nor th  line of Section 
1 6  'fur 7 0 8 . 5 8  f e e t  to t h e  Point of Beginning. Thence 
S03"49'1SnE for 1341.66 feet; thence N88°57'07"W f o r  4147.18 
feet.. to t h e  west l ine  of said Section 16; thence NOl003'36"E 
along said weet 1 h e  fox 1386..96 feet to the Northwest corner 
nf eaid Section 16; thence SBB014'32"E along the North line of 
eaid Section 16 for  4 0 3 3 . 4 9  feet to the Point of Beginning. 

ALSO LESS AN0 EXCEPT: Begin at the Northeast Corner of 
Section 16, Towndaip  1 South, Range 14 West, Bay County, 
F l o r i d a .  Thence N88014 '33"W along the north line of said 
Section 16 for 5 3 6 . 3 0  feet to the centerline of construction 

a Gulf Power Company Easement, .deecribed in Deed Book 116, 
Page 105, in khe Public Records of Bay County, Florida. 
Thence SS1°03'3888E along #aid centerline of construct€on for 
6 7 8 . 0 9  f ee t  to the east line of maid S e c t i o n  16; thence 
N01°12'22"E along isaid eaa t  line for 4 a 9 . 7 3  Eeet to t h e  Point 
:>f Beginning. 

PARCEII T ( T i  The Weet Half of t h e  Northeaet Quarter of the 
Northweat. Quarter; the  South Half of the Northweat Quarter; t h e  
'Snut.hwest Quarter; t he  Northweat Quarter af k h e  Southeast Quarter; 
t h e  Nas?. Half of t h e  Southeaet Quarter; the South Half of the 
Northeast  yuaxter; Sect ion 17, Township 1 South, Range 14 Weet. 

!,L.:SS AND EXCEPT: Commcncc at khe Northeaot Corner nf Section 
IF. Townehip 1 Soirth, Rangi? 1 4  Weat, Bay County, F l o r i d a .  
rli+rtc:p N B R 0 1 4 ' . 7 t " W  n l m q  t:hc Nnr th  line of Raid Section 16 for  
1 lr44 8 0  feet'.; t.hmice S03°49'15"F f n r  1341.86 feet; thence 
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. . .  EXHXBXT "A" 

PAP.(:EI I 1 Commence at: f,tw Narthwent .Come I: .or S e c t h n  1s ' b w x ~ s h i p  
I . ~ ; c . ~ i t  11,.  Rrrrlyc 1.4 Wcet., nay Coiinty, F lnr . lda .  Thence R01 o~z' '3 .3 ."w 
alclncj t tw W C A ~  linc u€ aaid Scctlon 3.5 f o r  4 0 9 . 7 3  feet F O  thc 
cvntnr 1 I r w  of coner.rt ictlnn nF a G i l l  F P o w e r  Company Eanement (100 
t o o t  wide), described in, Dead Buok 116, IOS, Lrl thc Public  Records 
o f  B a y  Ccmnty, Floridai ,  f o r  the POi.nt; nf Regtnning. Thence 
~ 5 1 ~ 0 1 '  7 R " E  along the center'ltne'of con8t iuctha of said Gulf P o w e r  
Company Easement fox 9 3 0 . 8 7  feet; thence SOlut2'4SW for 2 4 7 R . 3 3  
fact. 1 ' 1  '.he c e n t e r l h e  of a d i r t  road: thence  N73°X0'07HW along 
eafd  renterline a€ 243.0L feet; thence  R74a46'38iqW along aaid 
contprllrie for 5 1 7 . 3 1  feet. t.0 aaid west line of Section IS; thence 
N 0 1 ° ! % ' 2 % 1 m K  along m i d  went. line for 2AFi7.26 feet. to the Point of 
B e q i n r i l r i q  . 

PARCEL 1 1 .  S e c t i o n  .1G0 Townehlp L South, 'Range 14 Weep., Bay 
Count.y. F l o r i d a .  

t&Ss AHD EXCEPT: Commence at the Mort-hcaet corner of Section 
16. Townehip 1 South,  Range 14 Weat, Bay County, Florida. 
Thence N88*14'33"W along the North line of eaid Section 16 for 
5'16 3 0  feet to the centerline of conatruckion of a Gulf Pwwer 
C:urnpany Eaeernent (100 foot wide1 as deecribed in Deed Book 
116, Page 105,. of Lhe Public Records of Bay County, Florida. 
Thence continue N8B014'33W along said north l i n e  of Section 
1 6  €or 7 0 8 , 5 8  feet to t h e  Point of Beginning- Thence 
S03°49'15mE for 1341.06 f e e t ;  thence N88aS7 '07abW for 4147.18 
feet. to the west line of maid S e c t h n . 1 6 ;  thence N01u03'36nE 

, along m i d  weet fine for 1386.96 feet to the Northwest corner 
of eaid Section 16: thence S88a14'32wE along the North line of 
maid Section 16 for 4 0 3 3 . 4 9  feet to tbe Point: of Beginning. 

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT: Begin at the Northeaet Corner of 
Section 16, Township 1 South, Range 14 Weat, Bay County, 
Florida. Thence N88°14'33"W along the north line of said 
section 16 for 5 3 6 . 3 0  feet to the centerline of conetruct ion 
of a Gulf P o w e r  Company Easement, deecribed in Deed Book 116, 
Page 105, in the  Public Records of Bay County, Florida. 
Thence SSlo03'38"E along eaid centerline of conetructinn for 
6 7 8 . 0 9  f ee t  to the e a e t  line of s a i d  Section 16; tl?elAC@ 
N 0 3 ° 1 2 ' 2 2 n E  along said e a e t  l i n e  for 4 0 9 . 7 3  feet tn t h e  Point 
rlf Beginning. 

P ~ C E I ,  T I T !  The Weel:. Half of t h e  Northeaet Quarter of t he  
Northwest. Quarter; the South Half of the Northweat Quarter; the 
southwee!. Quarter; t h e  :Northweet Quarter of the Southeast  Quarter :  
r . h  E ; ~ B + .  Half of t h e  Southeaet Quarter; the  South Half of t he  
Northeaet Q u a r t e r ;  Section 1 7 ,  Townehip 1 South, Range 14 West. 

I,E;S:; AND EXCEPT: C o m m c n c c  a t  the Northeast Corner of Section 
( 6  Tnwnehip I South ,  Ramp 14 West, Bay Counby, F l o r i d a .  
!'liprir:e N B R O t 4 ' . 7 7 ' ' W  afonq f:he N o r t h  line of na id  Section 1 G  for 
1 > 4 4  8 8  feet . ;  t.hf!~ic!e S03°49'15"E for 1341.86 feet; thence 
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PAF7CFJI i r -  -That portion of Scct , ion  20, Townehip 1 Sout-h, Range 1 4  
Weet, B a y  County ,  Floridla, West: of Proaper Drive .  

PARCET, VI That portion nf Section 21, Township 1 South, Range 14 
weet., Ray !:ounty, Florida, West of Prosper Drive. 

PARCEL v.Cl: The Noxthe:aet Quarter of the Nbrthweet Quarter and 
t h a t  p o r t i o n  of the N o r t h w c e t  Quarter of the Northeaet Quarter Week 
of Prneper Drive, Section 2 9 ,  Townehip 1 S0ut.h. Range 14 W e s t . ,  Bay 
County. Florida. 

.+.- LESS ANL, EXCEPT (me SC hQQL..LL.W :- 

Raqin at the  inteseection of the North l i n e  of Section 19, 
Tnwnehfp 1 South, Range 14 Weet and the Eaat right-of-way l i n e  
of State Road No. 7 7 ;  thence South B 9 O  57' 32"  Eaet along t h e  
North l i n e  of Section 19 for 2142;OO feet; thence South 00" 
1 6 '  3 8 "  Weat for 271.00 feet; thence South 6 4 O  0 4 '  2 3 "  West For 1180.00 feet; thence South 76O 06 '  16'' West fox R65.00 
feet to a, p o i n t  on the curving Eaet right-of-way l i n e  of S t & q t e  
Road No. 7 7 ;  Thence Nbrthweeterly along,a,aad cuwfvg right-of - 
way line having a d e l t a  of 2 0 °  3 6 '  3 3 " ,  radius of 2 8 1 4 . 7 9  feet 
tor an arc diRtance uf 1012.48 Eeet (chord bearing North 1 3 O  
7 7 :  72n Weet for 1007.03 feet) to the p . t .  of s a i d  curve: 
'Thpnce Nor th  034 08 '  01'' Weat along said right-of-way l i n e  
I ?  5 2  feet to the p o i n t  of beginning. Said parcel containing 
4 4  ! - ! ) - I  acree m o r e  or leem and l y i n g  in B a y  County, FlorXda. 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT C 

(Types of Service) 

Dana Utility Corporation will provide potable water service 
to the Lake Merial community. 



Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT D 

(Number of Water ERCs)  

The following a r e  t h e  ERC estimates f o r  t h e  Lake Merial 
development. A final determination on the p r o j e c t  phasing 
has not been made. 

The proposed site p lan ,  approved as p a r t  of  the Development 
Agreement with Bail County, provides f o r  t h e  development of 
648 residential homes, a K-8 public school (approximately 
1600 students), a 100 ,000  sq. ft. shopping center, a park, 
a 100 room hotel and a 15,000 sq. ft. country club. This 
equates to approximate ly  900  ERCs. 

A more detailed c a l c u l a t i o n  will be supplied with the  
application f o r  approval  of initial rates and charges. 



Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT E 

(Land for Water and Wastewater F a c i l i t i e s )  

Dana does n o t  currently own the land where t h e  water and 
wastewater f a c i l i t i e s  will be constructed. The current 
owner is Dana’s sole shareholder, Lake Merial Development 
Company, Inc. 

Consistent with Chapter 2 5 - 3 0 . 0 3 3  (1) ( j ) ,  F.A.C., included 
is an unexecuted copy of a c o n t r a c t  f o r  purchase and s a l e  
of the l and ,  including a legal description (Exhibit E-1) 
and a draft copy of t h e  r e l a t e d  warranty deed (Exhibit E- 
2) * 



THIS CONTRACT FOR S A L €  (the ''Conlract") is hereby &e and entered into as of the 
Effective Date (as hereafter defined) by and bctwten LAKE MERiAL D E W O P m  
COMPANY, INC., a Florida carporaticm, 13100 S. R. 77, Southport, FL 32409 (the "Seller") and 
DANAUTlLITYcORPOW.IION, aFloridamrparation, I3 IO0 S. R 77, Southport, FL 32409(the 
"Buyer' I) * 

For vdw mid and in consikration of the mutual covenants and conditions wntained 
berein, Seller and Buyer agree as followvs: 

1. proneaV. Buyer a p e s  to buy md Sella a g ~ ~ e s  to sell that certain mct or parcel of 
land located in Bay County, F h i &  mi more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto 
and made a part hereof [the " p 1 . 0 ~ ) .  The description of the property is exprtasly agreed to also 
include any and all existing improvements ta the Property. 

2. m c e .  The purhse  price for tbe Raperty is 
DOLLARS ($ 1 payabIe .as follows: 

a) Upon full exccution o f  this Contract, Doilars ($A 
(tht ''Initid Deposit") paid by the Buyet to Burke & Blue, P.A. (the "Fscmw Agent"). 

3. -L Closhg shafl be held at the office of Burkt & Blue, P.A. on a date 
- T h e  

cbshg date mny be extended a: the optir>n of the Buyer ixl the event the Scller is unable to deliver 
inswble title in accordance wirh the requiretnents of paragraph 6 below. 

designated by Buyer which shall be IKI later than 

4. Convqg&e Q f At the t h e  of closing, Seller shsl! convey the tide to the 
Property by General Warranty ked.  Prior to closing, a commimcnt (the "Commihnntnt") to issue 
and owner's policy of title insm;mcc (the "Policy") issued by a reputable title insurer in an amount 
equd to d18 purchase price, which Commitment &dl obIigate the title hum to issue the Policy in 
an amount equal tothe purcht p i i ce  insu~@ the marketability ofthe title to be convcycdto Buyer, 
free and clear of d liens, encumkrancts, and other exceptions to title, arid subject only to ad valorem 
taxes for the 'currtnt year, cover~mts, restrictions, and easements of record that do not materidly 
rtsnict the use of the Pqxrty for the Buyer's intended use, or prevent the Buyer from securing 
financing and such other cxcepticas as shail bc deemed wtptablc to Buya. Counsel for Seller shall 
act as agent in regards to the issuance of the Policy and &e Commimcnt. 

5. lnsuble l& l 3 e  Buyer shall have 15 days after receipt of the Commitmat to 
provide written notification to t h t z  Sefler o l  any title defects. ln such wmt, the Seller sbatl have 15 
days h m  the date Seller receiwa Written nobfication from the Buyer of the title defects within 
which to cure the tide defects. Seller will, if tide is found ~ ~ b l e ,  ust diligent effort to ccmct 
defects in title within the time provided lierein, including the bringing of necessary suits. Upon 
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Seller's failure or inability to tomCt the Uainsurability of title within said  15 day period, at the 
option of fhe Buyer, the Seller shall deliver th~ tide in its existing condition. Otherwise, the Earnest 
Money shall be returned to Buyer uponurrittendtmand andthis Contract &alltenninatc, andall title 
evidence, surveys, and other h f o d o n  suppIied to Buyer in accordance with paragraph 3 above 
shall be retuned h m  Buyer t o  Seller. 

6. The risk of loss prior to c l o s h ~  shall be borne by the Seller. Seller 
a p s t o  maintaintht~inamaanexandcon~tioncomparableto its present conditionsothat 
at closing the improVements ddl  be in nearly the same condition as existed on E f f i v e  Date. 

7. Upon IdeWt b y  the Buyer, Sdler shall have the right to retain the h e s t  
Money paid by the Buyer hcwtmdcr, including accrued interest as seller's full and complete 
liquidated hags for m h  default, the parties hereby aclmowledghg and agreeing hat the acrid 
amount of the Seller's damage would bt! difficult if not impossible to detennrnt ' . Thepaymentof 
said liquidated damages, therefore, &all constitute Seller's sole and exclusive rtmody agaimt Buyer. 
Upon Seller's default, Buyer may (3) elcot to terminate the cantract and m i y c  a refund of the 
Deposit or (b) compel specific perfbrmance of Seller's obiigations hereunder. 

8. &&we bu :B- Th;s Contract may be assigned or transferred by 
Buyer at my time pmvidcd, ho waver, ncrtict of such assignment shall b immediately provided by 
Buyer to Sella. 

9. D ~ L  In the event this Contract is not signed simultaneously by both 
w i t s ,  it shdl be considered to be atid offer madt by the party fist executing it to the other party. 
In such evmr, said offer shall expire at midnight on& seven& (7th) day fbliowing execution by the 
offering party, d e s s  by thst tinit m e  copy executed by &party to whom the offer has been made, 
shall have bem pxaced in thc m i l  or pmonally delivmd to the other parq rnakug the offer. The 
" E f f d w  M e "  of this Contrait shall Ix &e h upon which it is accepted and executed by the 
pmy to whom the o* ismade:. 

IO. w a  . In the event kgd  action is hs&uted by any of the parties to enforce the 
terms of this Contract M arisiqg out of the execution ofth is  Agreement, the pfevmhg parzy will be 
entitled to reccive h r n  the other party M parties rtasonabb attorney's few to bc determined by the 
court in which the action is bmitght. 

12. F&~&&I& This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the Statt of Florida. 
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14. &lationshiwf:P- ' n e  parties do not intend to create the relationship between 
thunseIves of partnws,joint verrtures M my other relationslip other than that ofbuyers and sellers 
of red property. 

1 5 .  A m q &  Time is of the essence of this Contract. This Contract constitutes 
the sole and entire p e n t  of the p d e s  and is bindhg their heirs, successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHIEREOF, we have caused this Contract to be executbd as of the day and 
year written below. 

Signed, sed4 and delivered 
in the presence of: 

- 
AintNmne: c 

Print Name: I 

Date of Execution by Seller: - 

Print N m c :  

Print Name: 

SELLER 

By: 
Martin J. Goldstein 
h Its hsident 

BUYER: 

DANA UTILITY CORPOLUION, 
a Florida corporation * 

By: 
Martin J. Goldsaein 
As Its Resident 

Date of Exccuti.on by Buyer: - 
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PARCEL 1 
COMMENCE AT THE NORISWEST CORNER OF SECIION 17, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, 
RANGE 14 WEST, BAY COUNTY, F.LORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 89'46'13'' EAST, ALONG 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 17,1321 -78 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG S A I D  NORTH LINE SOUTH 89'46'13" W T ,  660.92 FEET; 
THENCE S0UTHOO050'22"WEST, 23 18.75 FEET; THENCENORTH89"51'47" WEST, 305.98 
FEET; THESNCE SOUTH OO"48'04" WST, 319.64 FEET; THENCENORTH 89'51'47'' WEST, 
354.07 FEET; THENCE NORTH OOO48'04" EAST 1639.48 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

uKEu 
COMMENCE AT TKE NORIWWEST' CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOwNsHlP 1 SOUTH, 
RANGE 14 WEST, BAY CO'CNTY, FIBRIDA, THENCE SOUTH 89'46'13" EAST, ALONG 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 17,1982.70 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 "50'22" WEST, 
13 17.75 FEET, THENCE SOU'W 89's i'47" EAST 242.42 FEET TO THIE POINT OF 
BEGINE61NG; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 89 ' 5  1'47" EAST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 

NORTH 00'08'13" EAST, 459.94 FEET TO THE POINT OF B E G W G .  
o o * i 8 ~  WEST, 459.94 mr; THENCE NORTH 8 9 0 5 i w ~  WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE 

U K E U  
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF S E m O N  17, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, 
W G E  14 WEST, BAY COUNTY, FLORID4 THENCE SOUTH 89'46'13" EAST, ALONG 
THENORTHLINEOF SAlDSECTlON 17,1932.70FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00'50'22'' WEST, 
13 17.75 FEET; THENCE SQUX 89 "51'47" EAST 706.29 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE CONT[NuE SOUTH 89 "5 1'47" EAST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
QO"18'13" WEST, 224.94 FEET, IlIFNpJ NORH 89'51'47'' WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH OOo0e113" EAST, 224.!?4 FEET TO WE POINT OF 'BEGINNTNG. 
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PARCEL 1.D. NO. 

lJARRANTY DEED 

This ImEN"URE, made this of August, 1999, between LAICE 

MERIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, I N C . ,  a Florida corporation, whoee 

address is 13100 S.R. 77, Southport, FI, 32409 ("Grantorit)*, and 

DAMA UTILITY CORPORATION, EL Florida corporation, whose address is 

13100 S.R. 7 7 ,  Southport, FL 32409 (f1Grantee8f) +: 

WITNESSETH: Tha.t sa id  G r a n t o r ,  f o r  and in conaideration of 

the sum of Ten Dollars ($lO.QOI and other good and valuable 

coneiderations to said GrarttQr in hand paid by said Grantee, the 
receipt whereof i s  hextby ac:knowlsdged, has granted, bargained and 

sold to the said Grantee, and Grantee's successors and a~signs 

forever, the following described land, situate, lying and being in 

Bay County, Florida, t . 0 - w i t  : 

m 
COMMENCE AT THE MI3RTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17. TOWNSHIP - _ _ ~ ~  
1 SOUTH, RANGE 14 WEsT, BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA; T e C E  SOUTH 
8 9 " 4 6 ' 1 3 "  EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 17, 
5321.78 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGIMING;  THENCE CONTfNUE 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE SOUTH 8 9 ' 4 6 '  13" EAST, 660 - 9 2  FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 0 0 ° 5 0 ' 2 2 "  WEST, 1318.75 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
8 9 ' 5 1 ' 4 7 "  WEST, 305.98  PET; TsfENCE SOUTH OO"48'04" WEST, 
329.64 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89'51'47" WEST, 
"HENCE NORTH 06°48 '04 '1  EAST 1639.48 FEET TO T 3 E  POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

354 .07  FEET; 

J3mzLd 
CQml3HCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 1 
SOUTH, RANGE 14 rJEST, RAY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 
89 '46 '13"  EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 17, 
1982.70 FEET; TXRWCE SOVTH O O " 5 0 ' 2 2 "  WEST, 1317.75 FEET, 
THENCE SOUTH 8 9 ' 5 . 1 ' 4 7 "  EAST 2 4 2 . 4 2  FEET TO THE P O f m  OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE COpJTIHIJE SOUTH 89"53'47" EAST, 5 0 . 0 0  FEET; 
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08/17/99 TOE 15:50 FAX 850 784 0857 
qy..,,,' 

THENCE SOUTH 00°18'13" WEST, 459.94 FEET; THENC~ NORTH 
89°51'4'" WEST, 50.00 FEET; TllENC'! NORTH 00°08' 13 II EAST, 459.94 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINN!NG. 

PARCEL 3 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHl'lEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 
1 SOUTH, RANGE 14 WEST, BAY COUNTY I FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 
89°46' 13 II EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 17, 
1982.70 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°50'22" WEST, 1317.75 FEET, 
THENCE SOUTH 89°51'47 11 EAST 706.29 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 89°51'47" EAST, 50.00 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°18'13" WEST, 224.94 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 89°51'47" WEST, 50.00 FEET; TRENCE NORTH 00°08'13" 
EAST, 224.94 FEET TO 'rHE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

and said Grantor does hereby fully warrant the title to said land, 

and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons 

whomsoever. 

*"Grantor" and "Grantee" are used for singular or plural, 
as context requires. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto set Grantor's 

hand and seal the day a.nd year first above written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

LAI<E MERIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, 
INC., a Florida corporation 

By: 
Martin'J. Goldstein 
As Its President 

(Corporate Seal) 

Printed NAMo of W1~ncss 

lftH:l.ana. wei 2 

Exhibit E-2. page 2 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF BAY 

The foregoing instrument w d 5  acknowledged before me t h i s  - 
day of August, 1999, by Martin 3. Goldatein aa President of Lake 
Merial Development Crimpany,, Xnc., on behalf of the corporation. He 
(notary muat check applicable box) 

0 
El produced a curxent; - driver's license as 

0 produced as identification. 

is personally kinom t3 me. 

identification. 

(SEAL) 

ssriai 
M y  Commission Expires;  

3 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT F 

(Niumber of Wastewater ERCs) 

The following are the  ERC estimates f o r  t h e  Lake Merial 
development. A f i n a l  determination on t h e  p r o j e c t  phasing 
has n o t  been m a d e .  

The proposed site p lan ,  approved as p a r t  of  t h e  Development 
Agreement with B a y  County, provides f o r  t h e  development of 
648 residential homes, a K-8 public school (approximately 
1600 students), a 100,000 sq. ft. shopping center, a park, 
a 100 room hotel and a 15,000 sq. ft, country club. This 
equates to approximately 900  ERCs. 

A more detailed calculation will be supplied with the 
application for approval  of initial rates and charges. 
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EXHIBIT G 

(Reuse) 

Although t h e  applicant agrees with t h e  goal of reusing 
t r ea t ed  wastewater to conserve potable water supplies, it 
is not practical in this instance for several reasons. 

*Adequacy and Timing of Available Volumes of Reclaimed 
Water : 

Development plans  f o r  Lake Merial provide f o r  the 
construction of a go l f  course in the  initial phase of the 
projec t .  It is estimated t h a t  the g o l f  cour se  will require 
approximately 900,000 gallons of water per day,  on average, 
to maintain h e a l t h y  turf. The grow-in p e r i o d  will r e q u i r e  
substantially m o r e .  Subsequent housing construction and 
associated occupancy will lag this :initial construction. 
Consequently, wast ,ewater  flows (and corresponding reclaimed 
water volumes) will not be adequate f o r  establishing or 
maintaining turf on t h e  cour se .  Alternate water supplies 
would need to be developed f o r  the gol f  cour se  irrigation 
s y s t em. T y p i c a l l y ,  these t y p e s  of irrigation systems 
utilize either shallow groundwater (surf icial a q u i f e r )  
supplies or pump directly from s u r f a c e  ponds on t h e  course .  
Both of these :;ources r e l y  on surficial groundwater 
supplies. A v a i l a b i - l i t y  of adequate volumes of reclaimed 
water to have any meaningful environmental benefit is not 
p o s s i b l e .  

*Indirect Water Resource Damand is Effectively Provided: 

The wastewater t r e a t m e n t  p l a n t  effluent disposal utilizes 
r ap id  infiltration basins which discharge to groundwater. 
Given that t h e  gol f  course and/or residential irrigation 
systems will r e l y  on surficial groundwater supplies, there 
is a contribution to groundwater through t h e  infiltration 
basins to help offset t h e  withdrawal from surficial 
supplies. This water, except  f o r  t h a t  which evaporates ,  is 
effectively reclaimed and reused within the system. 

*Cost to Provide R o u s e  of Wastewater: 

All available are35 within t h e  development would r e q u i r e  
unrestricted public access grade effluent f o r  reuse. 
Capi t a l  facilities requirements f o r  treatment , 
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instrumentation, p-umping, s torage  and distribution systems 
required to provj.de t h e  effluent quality and opera tor  
attendance requirements are comparable to adding another 
separate utility. Capital and annual costs of such a 
system would impose an  undu ly  h a r s h  economic burden on the  
user base. 



Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT H 

(Applicant' s F i n a n c i a l  and Technical Ability) 

FINANCIAL ABILITY 

Dana Utility Corpora t ion ,  the Applicant, was recent ly  
incorporated f o r  t h e  spec i f ic  purpose of providing utility 
services to Lake Merial. Lake Merial Development Company, 
developer of L a k e  Merial and sole shareholder of t h e  
Applicant, has invested approximately f i v e  million dollars 
as of December 31, 1998 which has been used primarily f o r  
the purchase of l and  and gaining approvals f o r  t h e  p r o j e c t .  
The financial s t a t emen t s  f o r  Lake Merial as of  December 31, 
1 9 9 8  a r e  inc luded  as Exhibit 1-1. 

In suppor t  of  t h i s  Application f a r  Original Certificate, 
Lake Merial has executed a Master Service Agreement with 
the Applicant w h i c h  provides f o r  L a k e  Merial to provide 

copy of t h e  Master Service Agreement is attached as Exhibit 
H-1. 

funding f o r  the early stages of  utility development. A 

Lake Merial's agrelament t o  fund the utility is supported by 
a Utility Loan Commitment which Lake Merial has obtained 
from Dana P r o p e r t i e s ,  Ltd. ("Dana Properties") . This 
Commitment will provide Lake Merial and t h e  Applicant with 
funding  f o r  the c o n s t r u c t i o n  and o p e r a t i o n  of the  utility 
i n  an amount of up to $4,500,000. (See Exhibit H-2) The 
Loan will bear in t .e res t  a t  t e n  p e r c e n t  (10%) per annum and 
payments of  interest and principal will be made based upon 
available cash f l o w .  The c e r t i f i e d  f i n a n c i a l  statement of 
Dana Properties i .nd ica tes  a net worth of approximately 
3 , 9 0 0 , 0 0 0  pounds sterling, o r  over  $6 million U.S. d o l l a r s .  
The certified statement of Dana Properties i s  included as 
Exhibit 1-2. 

TECHNICAL ABILITY 

The responsibility for the  management of t h e  Applicant will 
be undertaken by Mr. M a r t i n  J. Goldstein, President of Lake 
Merial  Development Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Dana Utility C o r p o r a t i o n .  Mr. Goldstein has over twenty- 
f i v e  years  of management experience, i n c l u d i n g  the position 



Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

of Chief Operating Officer of developments that owned water 
and wastewater utilities. 

To assist in the s t r a t e g i c  planning, utility operations and 
management of t h e  utility systems, Mr. Goldstein has 
executed an agreement with Fancher Management Group I n c .  
(FMG)  included as Exhibit H - 3 .  Mr. Fancher,  President of 
FMG, has over twen ty  f i v e  years  utility experience, 
primarily in t h e  water and wastewater industry. With t h e  
responsibilities 'of Chief Financial O f f i c e r ,  Chief 
Operating Off i ce r  and President f o r  a large water and 
wastewater utility with many s e p a r a t e  systems, M r .  Fancher 
has spec i f ic  experience in issues likely to be encountered. 
Besides managing water and wastewater systems, he has  
provided f i n a n c i a l  analysis and testified before the  
F lo r ida  Public Serv ice  Commission on many utility t o p i c s  
including capital s t r u c t u r e ,  operating expenses, r a t e  base, 
cos t  of  service studies, rate structure, s e r v i c e  territory 
and management practices. 

Currently, the u t i . l i t y  facilities are  in t h e  process of 
design. As such, the a r e  no cur ren t  employees and no 
organization c h a r t .  However, t h e  preliminary p l a n  is t o  
have t r ea tmen t  plant operations carried o u t  through 
contract. The con t rac t  ope ra to r  would s u p p l y  the 
appropriate covera.ge,  with certified operators, and 
supervision of p. lan t  operations in accordance with 
applicable r u l e s  and regulations. Line maintenance,  
customer service,  rr.eter r e a d i n g  and billing functions a re  
expected to be included as p a r t  of t h e  responsibilities f o r  
L a k e  Merial Development employees, with costs allocated 
based upon time spent on utility matters. Qualified 
contractors would handle special maintenance requirements 
through contract maintenance, 



MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made this 3l day of August, 1999 

between Dana Utility Corporation, a Florida corporation (Utility) 

and Lake Merial Development Company, Inc., a Florida corporation 

(Developer) . 
WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain land in Bay 

County, Flor ida ,  which Developer i n t ends  to develop as a multi- 

use project known as Lake Merial; and 

WHEREAS, central water and wastewater services are essential 

for the development of Lake Merial; and 

WHEREAS, Developer has executed an agreement with the School 

Board of Bay County,  Florida to, among other  t h i n g s ,  provide 

potable water and wastewater services to a new educational 

facility known as the Deane Bozeman Learning C e n t e r ;  and 

WHEREAS, Utility is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Developer 

and Developer desires that Utility provide retail water and 

wastewater service to Lake Merial; and 

WHEREAS, Developer and Utility contemplate that the r equ i r ed  

water and wastewater treatment facilities, water transmission and 

distribution facilities, and wastewater collection facilities 

( F a c i l i t i e s )  will be owned by Utility; and 

WHEREAS, Utility intends to file an application with the 

Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) f.or original 

certificates f o r  water and wastewater f o r  Lake Merial (FPSC 

Certification); and 

-1- 
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WHEREAS, at this time Utility does not have the f inanc ia l  

capability to design and construct the Fac i l i t i e s .  

NOW, THEREFORE, :in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and 

o t h e r  good and va1uab:Le consideration, and of the mutual 

covenants and agreements hereinafter s e t  forth, the receipt  and 

sufficiency of which i3re hereby acknowledged, the parties agree 

as follows: 

1 .  Obligations of Developer. Developer agrees to: 

a. Design and construct, or cause to be designed and 

constructed,  the Facilities in accordance with 

plans and specifications meeting the approval of 

Utility and the governmental agencies having 

jurisdiction, and convey the same to Utility. 

Devehper may finance the acquisition of the 

Facilities by Utility through capital 

contributions, loans, or as otherwise mutually 

agreed. 

b. Provide Utility the r i g h t  to use the  land on which 

such treatment facilities are located by s e l l i n g  

the land to Utility, or by an alternate method 

that complies with Rule 25-30.433(10), Florida 

Administrative Code. 

c. Finance the Phase I operations of Utility t h rough  

capital contributions, loans, guaranteed revenues, 

or as otherwise mutually agreed until Utility's 



operating revenues are adequate to cover its 

operating costs. 

d. 	 Support Utility's application for FPSC 


certification. 


2. 	 Obligations of Utility. Utility agrees to: 

a. 	 Apply for the FPSC Certification. 

b. 	 Provide water and wastewater service to Lake 

Merial and the Deane Bozeman Learning Center, 

conditioned upon the granting of the FPSC 

Certification. 

c. 	 Operate and maintain the Facilities in accordance 

with applicable permits, rules and regulations. 

d. 	 Apply for rate relief from time to time in order 

to maintain fair and reasonable rates which will 

enable the Utility to become financially self­

sufficient as soon as practicable. 

3. 	 Term. This Agreement shall have a term of ten years; 

provided, however, that it shall terminate earlier on 

the occurrence of either of the following events: (1) 

Utility abandons its application for FPSC 

Certification; or (2) the FPSC Certification is denied 

and the order of denial has become final and non­

appealable. 

4. 	 Effect of Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding 

on and shall inure to the benefit of the parties 

Exhibit H-I, page 3 
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hereto, and their respective successors and assigns, 

and 	constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties related to the matters referred to herein. No 

provision of this Agreement may be waived unless such 

waiver is set forth in writing and signed by the party 

to be charged; and this Agreement can be amended or 

modified only by a written instrument executed by the 

parties with the same formality as this Agreement. 

5. 	 Notices. Any notices under this Agreement shall be 

addressed as follows: 

TO UTILITY: 

Dana Utility Corporation 
13100 SR 77 
southport, FL 32409 

TO Lake Merial: 

Lake 	Merial Development Company, Inc. 
13100 SR 77 
southport, FL 32409 

6. 	 Assignment. Neither party can assign its rights or 

obligations under this Agreement without the written 

consent of the other party. 

7. 	 Interpretation. This Agreement will be interpreted in 

accordance with the laws of the state of Florida. All 

captions and headings appearing are for convenience 

only and shall not be considered in construing the 

provisions hereof. 

~tF.[-1,page4 
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8. 	 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The Agreement is solely 

between the parties hereto and is not intended, nor 

shall it be construed, to create any rights or remedies 

as to third parties. 

9. 	 Recitals. The recitals are incorporated herein by 

reference, and shall be deemed part of this Agreement 

for all purposes as if set forth at length herein. 

10. 	 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or 

more counterparts, each of which shall be an original 

and all of which shall constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have caused this 

Agreement to be executed in their respective names as of the day 

and year first above written. 

Lake 	Merial Development Company, Inc. 

~2B~n~ Goldstein 
President 

orationDana 

Goldstein 

Exhibit H-l, page 5 
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AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT (thr: "Agreement") made and entered into as of August 15, 1999 by 

and between DANA UTILITY CORPORATION, a Flotida Corporation, ("DANA") and 

FANCHER MANAGEMENT CiROUP, INC., a Florida Corporation, (HFMG"). 

WHEREAS, DANA desires to make arrangements to provide for continuing expertise in 

connection with the assessment,, planning and operation of its water and wastewater systems; and 
WHEREAS, FMG is willing to provide services in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, :for and in consideration of mutual promises and covenants set 

forth herein, together with other good and valuable consideration, it is agree4 between the parties 

as follows: 

1. DUTIES of FANCHER MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. FMG agrees to 

provide profess,ional consulting services for all duties and responsibilities 

assigned by DANA, including but not limited to the following areas: 

a. Review of the day to day operation of the water and wastewater systems, 
including the hiring, training and supervision of the personnel employed by 

DANA, contract operations, customer billing and collections, accounting, 

plant operations, system maintenance, customer relations and compliance with 

regulatory niles, regulations and procedures; 

b. Assist with the development of strategic planning, utility expansion programs, 

and assessments, including representing DANA in meetings with local 

government,s and regulatory authorities. 
c. Provide any other assistance as requested by DANA. 

2. COMPENSATION FMG's compensation for the services performed pursuant to 

this Agreement shall be based on the hourly fee schedule identified on Exhibit A 

and reimbursenient for out of pocket expenses to include but not be limited to 

travel, telephone, postage, courier services and reproductions. Exhibit A may be 

1 
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revised from time to time with the consent of the parties. Invoices shall be 
rendered monthly and are due within twenty (20) days of receipt. 
EFFECTIVE DATE and T E M A T J O N .  This Agreement shall be effective as 
of , and shall remain in effect unless terminated by either party by 

written notice to ,the other party at least thirty (30) days in advance of the effective 

date of termination. 

DUTIES of DANA. In order for FMG to perform the services and duties under 

this engagement, DANA will provide access to its accounting, financial and other 

records and information as necessary for the completion of the work assigned. 
NOTICES. 
registered mail or by delivery by hand, 

2. 

3. 

4. Notices given hereunder shall be given in writing by certified or 

if to DANA to: 

if to FMG to 

Martin J. Goldstein 
Dana Utility Corporation 
13 100 Highway 77 
Southport, Florida 32409 

Charles E. Fancher, Jr. 
Fancher Management Group, Inc. 
2844 Chucunantah Road 
Coconut Grove, F133 133 

5 .  WAIVER of BREACH The waiver by DANA or FMG of a breach of any 

provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any 

subsequent breach. 
6. GENERAL 

a. 

b. 
Any amendment to this Agreement shall be in writing and executed by all parties. 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which together shall 
constitute one Agreement. 
The titles or captions of the provisions of this Agreement are merely descriptive 
and are not representations of matters included or excluded from such provisions. 

c. 

2 
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d. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Laws 

of the State of Flcrrida. 
If any provision of this Agreement or any part hereof is held to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision or part 
hereof shall be void and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect. 
This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties and no 
understanding exists between the parties other than as expressed herein. 

e. 

f. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereta have executed this Agreement on 

DANA UTILITY CORPORATION 

,/ Martin J. Goldstein, President 

FANCHER MANACjEMENT GROUP, INC, 
I 

By: 

Charles E. Fancher, Jr., Pres& 

3 
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Exhibit A 

Prinicipal 

FANCHER MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. 

SCHEDULE of HOURLY BILLING RATES 

$125 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT I 

(Appliicant' s Financ ia l  Statements) 

Dana Utility Corpora t ion ,  a wholly owned subsidiary of L a k e  
Merial Development Corporat ion,  was incorpora ted  on August 
18, 1999 and has no financial statements. Attached as 
Exhibit 1-1 are the most recent financial statements of its 

As parent company, Lake Merial Development Company. 
discussed in Exhibit H, Lake Merial has en te red  into a 
Master Service Agreement which provides  for Lake Merial to 
fund the initial c o n s t r u c t i o n  and operation of t h e  utility. 

Lake Merial is assoc ia ted  with Dana Properties, L t d . ,  an 
international i nves to r  and developer of real e s t a t e  
p r o j e c t s .  As discussed  in Exhibit H, Dana Properties has 
e'xecuted an agreement with Lake Merial which provides  a 
source of fundinq f o r  t h e  entire utility. The audited 
financial statements f o r  Dana Properties, Ltd. including an 
Accountant's Certi .f icate f o r  the year ended May 3 0 ,  1 9 9 8  
are inc luded  as Exhibit 1-2. The audited f i n a n c i a l  r e p o r t  
for the  fiscal year ended May 30, 1999 is in process bu t  
not finalized as of the  filing date this application f o r  
o r i g i n a l  certificates. 



m s m t  

26 1999, 1f-M 
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FROM : Panasonic FAX SYSTEM 

. ,  

PHONE NO. : . ..- 
*' ,. 
s 

L 
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Company Number: 1526401 

DANA PROPERTIES LtMlTED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MAY 1998 
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Directors 

,- 

secretary 

Company Number 

Registered Office 

Auditors 

DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

COMPANY INFORMATION 

A. B. Simon 
Mrs N. B. Simon 

Mrs N. B. Simon 

1526401 

235 Otd Marylebone Road 
London 
NWt 5QT 

Wilder Coe 
Chartered Accountants 
233-237 Otd Matylebone Road 
London 
NWI 5QT 
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DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

I- 

.- 

/ 
I ... " 

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 1998 

The directom present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 May jogs. 

Stafement of directors' msponsiblllties 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the etato of affaln of the company and of the profit or lo88 of the compeny for that perlod, In prsperlng those 
finandal statements, the directors artt required to: 

- 
- 
- 

- 

select suitable accounting policle~ and then apply them consilently; 
make judgements and estimates ,that are reasonabte and prudent; 
state whether applleable accountlng standards have been followed. subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the flnandal statements; 
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is lnappropriate to presume that the company 
will continue in business. 

The directors am responsible for kseping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 
time the flnandal positlon of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 
Campaniei A d  1985. They am alao responsible for safeguarding the assets of the compsny and hence for taklng 
reasonable steps for the prevention ;and detection of fraud and other Irregularltles. 

Principal acthrltle8 and revlsw of ttuslness 
The company's plindpal activiw during the year was that of investment and acting as an investment holding company. 

The directon of the compsny BE satisfied with the performance of the company during the year and no significant 
developments are antidpated in the coming year, 

Dlvldends 
The directors do not recommend that a dlvldend is paid. 

Year 2000 
The directom have considered and rissessed the Year 2000 issue and do not consider that it will have a material effect 
on the company. 

Dlmctom 
The directors who sewed during the year and their beneficial interests in the company's issued share capital were : 

A. 0. Simon 
Mn N. 6. Simon 

Ordinary shares of E l  each 
9 990 1997 

55 55 

The directors' Interests In or eontracts wtth the mmpeny during the year are disclosed In Note 11 to the finandal 
statemsn ts 

Auditom 
The auditors, Wlder Coe, will be rlroposed for reappointment in accordance with section 385 of the Companies Act 
1985. 

Thls report was approved by the board an 24 March 1999 and signed on its behalf. 

Mrs N. 3. Simon 
Secretary 
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E DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

!e 

I- 

.-. 

AWDlTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

We have audited the financial stalernsnts on pages 3 to 8 which have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention and the accounting polliciss set out on page 5. 

Res pecttive rasponst bil itles of d Ire c tors and a u d t to rs 

As described on page 1 the company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements. It 
is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our 
opinion to you. 

Bash of oplnion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An 
audit Includes examination, II test bask, of evldenca relevant to the amounta end dirclorure6 In the 
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the algnlflcent aitlmates and judgement# made by the 
directors in the preparatlon of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 
to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned end performed our audit so a8 to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from materkal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In 
forming our opinion we also evallJated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial 
statements. 

Oplnlon 

In our opinion, the financial statriments give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as af 
31 May 1998 and of its profit for I.he year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act 1985. 

Wilder Coe 

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 
233-237 Old Marylebone Road 
London 
NW1 5QT 

Date: 24 March 1999 
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DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 1998 

Mote 

Administrative expenses 
Other operating Income 

OPERATIWG LOSS 

Income from other fixed asset investments 
Profit on disposal of fixed asset investments 
Interest m i v a b l e  
Interest payable 

PROFITflLOSS) ON ORDINARY ACTTlllTlES BEFORE TAXATION 

TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORO1NAA:Y ACTIVITIES 

RETAtNED PROFITI(L0SS) FOR THE YEAR 

RETAINED PROFIT BROUGHT FORWARD 

RETAINED PROFIT CARRIED FORWARD 

2 

3 

4 

1998 
E 

(83,080) 
1,410 

(81,670) 

632 
50,750 
47,212 

(86) 

16,838 

18,838 

3,844,521 

E 3,861,359 

1997 
f 

(252,8341 

(252,834) 

92,978 

(467) 

(I 80,323) 

I90 

(160.733) 

4,004,654 

f 3,844,521 

Operating loss is derived wholly from continuing operations. 

There were no recognlsed gains imd losses for 1998 or 1997 other than those included in the profit and loss 
account. 

The notes on pages 5 to 8 form part of these financial statements. 
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” I ‘  DANA PROPERTlES LIMITED 

FIXED ASSETS 
Tangible fixed assets 
Investments 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 MAY m a  

Note 

5 
6 

I988 
E E 

180,306 
I 8441 8 

E 
1997 
E 

181,233 
408,919 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Debtors 7 
Cash at bank and In hand 

3,499,006 
24,258 

364,724 

3,000, I25 
258,344 

590,152 

CREDrrORs: amounts falling due 
within one year P 

3,623,262 

(26.527) 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT UABlLlTlES 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 9 
Capital redemption reserve 
Profit and loss account 

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS - All equity 10 

3,496,735 

E 3,a61,4s9 

65 
35 

3,861,359 

E 3,861,453 

3,258,469 

(4, o w  
3,254,469 

f 3,844,62 1 

65 
35 

3,844,521 

E 3,844,621 

The financial statements were approved by the board on 24 March 1999 and signed on its behalf 

A. 8. Simon Director 

The notes on pages 5 to 8 form part of these financiat statements. 
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DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 1998 

i. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1 .I 

I .2 

I .3 

1.4 

1.6 

Bas18 of pmparatlon of l:lnancisl ststemente 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and include the 
results of the company’rs operations which are described In the Directorr’ Report and all of which are 
contlnu tng . 
The company is exempt from the requirement to prepare group accounts by virtue of section 248 of 
the Companies Act 1 I385. These financial statements therefore present information about the 
company as on individual undertaking and not about its group. 
The company has taken advantage of the exemption in Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 from the 
requirement to produce a cash flow statement on the grounds that it is a small company. 

Tanglble flxed asseb and depreclatlon 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates 
calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their 
expected useful lives on the following bases: 

Office equipment 

Foreign currencies 

25% Reducing balance 

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruting 
at the balance sheet diate. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate 
ruling on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are taken into account in arriving at the 
operating profit. 

Deferred taxation 

Provision is made for taxation deferred as a result of material timing differences between the 
incidence of Income arid expenditure fur texotion and accounts purposes, using the liability method, 
only to the extent that, in the opinion of the dlrectors, there is a reasonable probabillty that a llability 
or asset will crystallise in the near future. 

Freehold propriles 

The company’s land arid buildings are held for investment purposes and in accordance with 
SSAP 19: 

a) Investment propertir!s are included in the accounts at market value. 

b) No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold investment properties. 

2. OPERATING LOSS 

The operating loss is statedl after charging: 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 
- owned by the company 
Audit fees 
Foreign exchange differences 

1998 
f 

927 
8,500 

13,318 

1997 
f 

I, 236 
2,000 

125,592 
P 

No director received any emoluments in either year. 

Exhibit 1-2, page 7 
Page 5 
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DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 1998 

3. INTEREST PAYABLE 
'I998 
E 

On bank loans and overdrafts f 86 

4. TAXATION 

Prlor years 
UK Corporation Tax 

6. TANGIBLE ASSETS 

Cost 
At 1 June 1997 

At 31 May 1998 

Depreciation 
At I June 1997 
Charge for year 

At 31 May 1998 

Fnshold land 
& bulldlngs 

f 

177,528 

177,526 

1997 
E 

E 467 

1997 
f 

E E 11901 

Office 
equipment 

E 

4,943 

4,943 

1,236 
927 

2,163 

Net Book Value 
At 31 May 1998 E 977,528 f 2,780 

At 3.1 M8y 1997 

~ 

f 177,526 

Total 
E 

182,469 

182,469 

1,236 
927 

2.1 63 

f 180,306 

f 3,707 f 181,233 

Included in land and buildinla8 is freehold land valued at €177,526 (1997 - E177,526) which is not 
depreciated. 
In the opinion of the directoirs the market value of the above land and buildings is equivalent to their book 
value at 31 May 1998. 

Exhibit 1-2, page 8 
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DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FlNANClAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 1998 

6. FMED ASSET INVESTMENTS 

cost 
At 1 June 1997 
Additions 
Disposals 

At 31 May 1998 

Net Book Value 
At 3t May t998 

Shares 
in group U nltstsd 

undertaking investments Total 
E E E 

I 00  

100 

e 100 

At 31 May 1997 E IOU 
-.<.== 

406,819 408,919 
7,321 7,321 

(231,822) (231,822) 

184,318 I 84,418 

Investment5 rnchids an I~vs:dlnarli III a subsidiary, Dana Developments Limited. comprising a holding of 

During Its latest financial year Dana Developments Limited made a loss after tax of f(79,114) 
(1997 - f(f7,598)) and at the end of that year the aggregate of its capltal and reserves was f23,006 

100% U: i i i  ~ ~ s , L Z  ~ i l ~ : : ~ ' ;  i ??!!PI 

(5997 - €102,120) n 

7. DEBTORS 

Due within one year 
Amounts owed by group unclertakings 
Other debtors 
Prepayments and accrued iricome 

1998 f997 
f f 

I ,037,m I I 4Q9,6IO 

40,924 

E 3,499,006 f 3,000,125 

2,461,420 1,549,591 

8. CREDITORS: 
Amounta folllng due wlthiri one year 

Bank loans and overdrafts 
Accruals and deferred inconie 

1998 1997 
f f 

20,527 
6,000 4,000 

E 26,527 f 4,000 

Page 7 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT J 

(Funding E n t i t i e s )  

Funding f o r  Dana Utility during the e a r l y  stages of 
development will be provided by i t s  parent company and sole 
shareholder, Lake Merial Development Company, pursuant to a 
Master Service Agreement between the p a r t i e s ,  (See Exhibit 
H-1) Lake Merial is also the developer of t h e  community to 
be served by the u t i l i t y  systems. 

As discussed in E x h i b i t  €3, Lake Merial has  obtained a l oan  
commitment from Dana Properties, L t d . ,  under which L a k e  
Merial and Dana Utility can o b t a i n  funds  to be utilized f o r  
t h e  construction and initial operation of the utility. (See  
Exhibit €3-2) 



l f  
'1 

DANA PROPERTIES LIMITED 

9. 

40. 

il. 

12. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 1998 

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 
100 Ordinary shares of f I e.3ch 

Allotted, called up and fully paid 
65 Ordinary shares of €1 each 

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 

1998 
E 

E 100 
P 

E 65 

ProRt/(loss) for the year 

Reconelllatlon of rnovemsntrl on shareholders' funds 
1998 
E 
16,838 

Opening shareholders' funds 

Closing shareholders' funds 

3,844,621 

f 3,861,459 

-1997 
f 

E 100 

E 65 

1997 
f 

(160,133) 

4,004,754 
~ 

f 3,844,821 

TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS 

During the year the company paid management charges to Auberlac Trading Limited of €20,000 in 
relation to administrative expenses. Mr A. 8. Simon Is a director of Auberlac Trading Limited. Auberlac 
Holdings Limited Owns 100% of the shares in this company and Mr A. B. Simon owns 100% of the 
shares in Auberlac Holdings Limited. 

During the year the following transactions occurred adjusting Debtors in each case: 

a) €240.000 was loaned to Auberlac Holdings Limited increasing the year end balance to El,430,000 
(1997:f I, f90,OOO). Mr A. 8. Simon owns 100% of the shares in this company. 

b) f 372,024 was received from Dana Developments Limited decreasing the year end balance to 
E1,037,586 (I€W7:E1,409,6lO). Dana Properties Owns 100% of the shares in this company. 

c) fi75,OOO was loaned to Auberlac Trading Limited giving a year end balance of E175,000 (1997:fNIL). 
Auberlac Holdings Owns '100% of the shares in this company and Mr A. 5. Simon owns 100% of the 
shares in Auberlac Holdings Limited. 

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PAlRTY 

Mr A. B. Simon owns 84.6% of the shares in Dana Properties Limited and is the ultimate controlling 
entity. 

Exhibit 1-2, page 10 
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Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT K 

(Service Territory Description) 

A description of the proposed service territory using 
township, range and section references i s  included as 
Exhibit K-1. The requested wa te r  and wastewater service 
t e r r i t o r i e s  a r e  t h e  same. 



APPIdCATlON OF DANA UTILI'I'Y CORPORATION FOR ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE IN BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Exhibit K 

- TERRITORY DESCRIPTION 

PARCEL I: Commence at the Northwest Corner of Section 1 5 ,  Township 1 South, Range 14 West, 
Bay County, Florida. Thence SO1 * 12'22"W along the west line of said Section 15 for 409.73 feet 
to the centerline of construction of a Gulf Power Company Easement (1 00 foot wide), described in 
Deed Book 1 16, 105, in the Public Records of Bay County, Florida, for the Point of Beginning. 
Thence S5 1 "03'38"E along the c'enterline of construction of said Gulf Power Company Easement 
for 930.87 feet; thence SO1 "12'45''W for 2478.33 feet to the centerline of a dirt road; thence 
N73 10'07" W along said centerline of 243 .O 1 feet; thence N74 "46'38" W along said centerline for 
5 17.3 1 feet to said west line of Section 15; thenceN01' 12'22"E along said west line for 2857.26 feet 
to the Point of Beginning. 

PARCEL 11: Section 16, Township 1 South, Range 14 West, Bay County, Florida. 

LESS AND EXCEPT: Commence at the Northeast corner of Section 16, Township 1 South, 
Range 14 West, Bay County, Florida. Thence N88" 14'33"W along the North line of said Section 
16 for 536.30 feet to the centerline of construction of a Gulf Power Company Easement (100 foot 
wide) as described in Deed Book 116, Page 105, of the Public Records of Bay County, Florida. 
Thence continue N88 O 14'33"W dong said north line of Section 16 for 708.58 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. Thence SO3 "49'1 5"E for 1341.86 feet; thenceN88 "57'07"W for 4147.18 feet to the west 
line of said Section 16; thence NO 1 03'36"E along said west line for 1386.96 feet to the Northwest 
corner of said Section 16; thence $88" 14'32"E along the North line of said Section 16 for 4033.49 
feet to the Point of Beginning. 

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT: Begin at the Northeast Corner of Section 16, Township 1 South, 
Range 14 West, Bay County, Florida. Thence N88 O 14'33" W along the north line of said Section 16 
for 536.30 feet to the centerline of construction of a Gulf Power Company Easement, described in 
Deed Book 116, Page 105, in the Public Records of Bay County, Florida. Thence S51'03'38''E 
along said centerline of construction for 678.09 feet to the east line of said Section 16; thence 
NO 1 O 12'22"E along said east line for 409.73 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

PARCEL 111: The West Half of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter; the South Half of 
the Northwest Quarter; the Southlwest Quarter; the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; the 
East Half of the Southeast Quarter; the South Half of the Northeast Quarter; Section 17, Township 
1 South, Range 14 West. 

LESS AND EXCEPT: Comnience at the Northeast Corner of Section 16, Township 1 South, 
Range 14 West, Bay County, Florida. Thence N88 14'33"W along the North line of said Section 
16for 1244.88 feet; thence 503"49'15''Efor 1341.86 feet; thenceN8S0S7'O7"W for4147.18 feetto 

Exhibit K- 1, page 1 
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APPIXATION OF DANA UTILITY CORPORATION FOR ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE IN BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

the East line of Section 17, Township 1 South, Range 14 West, for the Point of Beginning. Thence 
continue N88 "57t07"W for 1979.26 feet to the West line of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter 
of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 17; thence NO0 55'34"E along said West line for 42.04 feet 
to the North line of the South Half of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 17; thence 589' 50'45"E 
along said North line for 1979.60 feet to the East line of said Section 17; thence SO 1 "03'36"W along 
said East line for 72.92 feet to thr: Point of Beginning. 

PARCEL IV: That portion of Section 19, Township 1 South, Range 14 West, Bay County, Florida, 
East of State Road No. 77. 

PARCELS V. VI & VII: Begin at the Southwest corner of Section 20, Township 1 South, Range 
14 West, in Bay County, Florida; thence North 89 33' 17" East along the South line of Section 20 
for 1275.1 8 feet; thence South 01 O 20' 42" West for 1 3 18.19 feet; thence North 89 O 47' 3 1 " East for 
1584.08 feet to the Westerly right of way line of Prosper Drive; thence Northeasterly along said right 
of way line; the following courses and distances: North 19' 30' 3 1 'I East for 986.23, North 19' 50' 
23" East for 424.25 feet, North 111 52' 36" East for 61 7.29 feet; thence 20 O 16' 54" East for 446.84 
feet, North 23' 48' 30" East for 392.90 feet; North 28 50' 30" East for 582.69 feet, North 32" 39' 
03" East for 506.28 feet, North 33' 26' 17" East for 1587.99 feet, North 33 O 26' 17" East for 91 7.70 
feet, North 32" 07' 37" East for 487.21 feet, North 36" 44' 20' East for 540.58 feet to the North line 
of Section 21, Township 1 South, Range 14 West in Bay County, Florida; thence departing said 
Westerly right of way line, bear North 87 47' 21 " West along the North line of said Section 2 1 for 
1023.1 1 feet to the Northwest comer of said Section 21 ; thence South 89" 54' 3 1' West for 13 13.66 
feet; thence South 89" 54' 26" West for 13 13.76 feet; thence South S 9 O  54' 46" West for 2,627.49 
feet to the Northwest corner of Section 20, Township 1 South, Range 14 West in Bay County, 
Florida; thence South 00" 35' 42" West for 5254.1 8 feet to the Southwest corner of said Section and 
the point of beginning. Containing 615.73 acres more or less. 

Exhibit K-I, page 2 



Application of Dana Utility Corporation for Original Certificate in Bay County 

EXHIBIT L 

I(Service Territory Map) 

A map showing the proposed service territory is included as 
Exhibit L-1. The resquested water and wastewater service 
territories are the same. 


